Public Document Pack

@ Gateshead
B Council

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE AGENDA

Wednesday, 10 August 2022 at 10.00 am in the Whickham Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey

ltem | Business
1 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence (Pages 3 - 102)
Report of the Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation and Growth

2 Application to vary a premises licence to nominate an individual as the
Designated Premises Supervisor (Pages 103 - 138)

Report of the Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation and Growth

Contact: Sonia Stewart: email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 433 3045,
Date: Tuesday, 2 August 2022



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1

A Coune o S T
Council

TITLE OF REPORT: Application for a Review of a Premises Licence:
168-170 Sheriffs Highway, Gateshead, NE9 5SD

REPORT OF: Strategic Director; Economy Innovation and Growth:
Licensing Officer

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the application from Local Weights and
Measure Authority.

Representations were received from Northumbria Police, Licensing Authority, Public
Health and Gateshead Safeguarding Children Partnership, Councillor Dawn Welsh
and a member of the public.

2. BACKGROUND

On 12 October 2018 a premises licence was granted for 168-170 Sheriff Highway,
Gateshead, NE9 5SD following an application from Mr Farhad Jamnejad.

On 2 August 2019 an application to vary the premises licence to nominate Amer Idris
Paul as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was submitted. Northumbria
Police did not object and the application was therefore granted.

As a result of a premises licence inspection by Licensing on the 13 June 2022 it was
discovered that Mr Paul no longer worked at the premises. Mr Jamnejad was given
advice and later that day he submitted an application to nominate himself as the
DPS. Northumbria Police objected to the application, and it is to be considered by
Sub-Committee and details are contained in a further report.

Mr Jamnejad has recently advised Licensing that the premises address is 170 Sheriff
Highway with 168 Sheriff Highway being residential accommodation. The premises
is also known as Sheriff Highway Stores.

Prior to Mr Jamenejad being granted a premises licence in October 2018, a
premises licence has been held by others for this address between September 2005
and September 2018. That licence was the subject of a review in September 2015
from the Local Weights and Measures Authority. The premises licence was
surrendered in September 2018.

3. THE CURRENT REVIEW APPLICATION

Page 3



2

The review application submitted by Local Weights and Measure Authority
(‘Applicant’) is attached at Appendix 1. A copy of the Premises Licence is attached
at Appendix 1.1.

The Applicant applied for a review of the existing licence (Appendix 1.1) under s51 of
the Licensing Act 2003 on the following grounds:

On 24th February 2022, a test purchase exercise using a 15 year old
child volunteer was carried out at the premises and the child was sold a
bottle of Desperados Beer. This is an alcoholic beverage containing
5.9% alcohol.

The application for review was advertised in accordance with the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations
2005.

The Licensing Authority may attach conditions to any licence which are appropriate
for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. A copy of the Model Pool of
Conditions from Gateshead Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy is attached at
Appendix 1.2.

4. REPRESENTATIONS
The following representation was received:

Northumbria Police — (Appendix 2.0)

Licensing Authority — Kirsty Jennings (Appendix 2.1)

Public Health — Alice Wiseman (Appendix 2.2)

Gateshead Safeguarding Children Partnership — Saira Park (Appendix 2.3)
Councillor Dawn Welsh (Appendix 2.4)

Emma Eltringham (Appendix 2.5)

5. PARTIES
The Parties to the hearing will be:

a) Local Weights and Measure Authority — Tracey Johnson

b) Farhad Jamnejad- the Premises Licence Holder

c) Northumbria Police — Inspector Kevin Ashurst and Force Solicitor Hayley
Hebb

d) Licensing Authority- Kirsty Jennings

e) Public Health — Julia Sharp

f) Gateshead Safeguarding Children Partnership — Saira Park

g) Councillor Dawn Welsh

h) Emma Eltringham

Ms Eltringham has advised that she will not be attending the hearing.
6. THE POLICY & GUIDANCE
When carrying out its functions the Sub-Committee must have regard to:

(a) the Statement of Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy, and

Page 4



(b) the Licensing Act 2003
(c) the Amended Guidance (April 2018) issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 by the Secretary of State.

Some relevant parts of the Policy and Amended Guidance are reproduced in
Appendices 3 and 4. The parties may refer to any part of the Policy and Guidance
during the hearing.

An area plan is attached at Appendix 5.

7. FOR DECISION

The Licensing Authority may, having regard to the application, take any of the
following steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives:

Take no action;

Modify the conditions of the licence (alter, add or remove conditions);
Remove the designated premises supervisor;

Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; or
Revoke the licence.

Page 5



Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

— — —
N =

2.1
2.2
2.3

24
2.5

APPENDICES

Review Application

Premises Licence

Pool of Model Conditions from Gateshead Council’s Licensing
Policy

Representation from Northumbria Police
Representation from Licensing Authority
Representation from Public Health

Representation from Gateshead Safeguarding Children
Partnership

Representation from Councillor Dawn Welsh
Representation from Emma Eltringham

Relevant Extracts from Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy

Relevant Extracts from the Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003.

Area Plan

Page 6



Gateshead Council, Licensing, Economy, Innovation & Growth

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Gateshead Council — Local Weights and Measures Authority

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 fapply-for-the review-of a-club

premises-certificate-underseection-87-of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
168 Sheriff Highway
Sheriff Hill

Post town Gateshead Post code (if known) NES 5SD

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
Farhad JAMNEJAD

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
00CH 04511

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick v" yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) 1

3) a member of the club to which this application relates ]
(please complete (A) below)

Page 7




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr [ Mrs  [] Miss [ ] Ms ] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 8




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Tracey Johnson

Trading Standards

Climate Change, Compliance, Planning & Transport
Economy, Innovation & Growth

Civic Centre,

Gateshead

NE8 1HH

Telephone number (if any)
0191 4333934

E-mail address (optional)
traceyjohnson@gateshead.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/

1) the prevention of crime and disorder V]
2) public safety ]
3) the prevention of public nuisance ]
4) the protection of children from harm V]

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

On 24t February 2022, a test purchase exercise using a 15 year old child volunteer
was carried out at the premises Sheriffs Highway Stores Ltd, 168 — 170 Sheriff
Highway, Gateshead NE9 5SD, and the child was sold a bottle of Desperados Beer.
This is an alcoholic beverage containing 5.9% alcohol. | believe that this act
undermines the licensing objective of the protection of children from harm and
contributes to the antisocial behaviour caused by youths consuming alcohol in the
area.

Page 9




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

The test purchase exercise was carried out following complaints received to the
trading standards service from local police and councillors of youths drinking alcohol
and causing ASB in the area.

The shop was visited on 27™ May 2021 and on 2" December 2021 to provide advice
in relation to underage sales and provide the business with tools to prevent sales to
underage persons. An advice information pack was left with Jaafar JAAFAR on 27t
May 2021 who confirmed he was the business owner at that time. The licence holder
was confirmed as Farhad JAMNEJAD.

The test purchase exercise was carried out on 24" February 2022 and the young
person was sold alcohol without being required to produce ID.

It was confirmed that both parties own the business that operates from the premises
with Mr JAMNEJAD being sole director but Mr JAAFAR being a person with significant
control so the directing mind of the business.

The sale was carried out by an employee who had been working with the business
only a short matter of time and hadn’t been given any training by either of the
business owners. Also, no training records could be produced by either of the
business operators.

The seller could not find the refusals book when asked for this on the date of the
sale. They do operated a challenge 25 policy, but this was not followed on the date
of the sale.

They confirmed that DPS Amer Idris PAUL is no longer working for them and had left
the company a few months before. They had failed to notify the licensing section
with regards to the change and didn’t realise they had to. This shows poor
management of the business in relation to undermining the licensing objectives.

Intelligence to trading standards in relation to possible sales of illegal tobacco from
the premises had also been reported that were taking place at the van owned by Mr
JAAFAR outside of the premises. When trading standards had visited the premises in
order to view the CCTV of this alleged act, it was found that the CCTV system had
stopped working one hour before the time we had requested to view it. An
inspection of the vehicle at that time was carried out and 6 packets of illegal tobacco
were found in a carrier bag.

| do not believe that this premises is operating well and that the licensing objectives
are being undermined. They are putting children at risk of harm and are contributing
to antisocial behaviour in the area. Conditions have previously been added to this
premises licence and | do not believe that there are any further conditions which
could help ensure that the licensing objectives are positively promoted.

Page 10




Please tick v" yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the 4|
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year
LhobRiohi]

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

A review of the premises licence was made by the local weights and measures
authority on 11t September 2015 in relation to underage sales of cigarettes sold to a
15 year old child volunteer and the volunteer was not asked to prove his age. The
owner and licence holder of the business at that time was not the same licence
holder as we have now.

Page 11




Please tick v" yes

e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

¢ lunderstand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected

IT ISAN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO AFINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature W

Capacity  Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

n

Page 12




Sheriff Highway Stores Update to Review Application

Email sent 18 July 2022

Licensing,

| would like to add further information to my review application that | submitted to you. It is
in relation to the advice visit of 27t May 2021. This advice visit was carried out following an
attempted test purchase by our volunteer to purchase alcohol. The volunteer on this
occasion was asked to provide ID and was refused the sale. The last date that was recorded
in the refusal book at that time was 25" May 2019. Training records were also provided to
Jaafar JAAFAR and advised that training records were needed for all staff employed.

Further intelligence was received by Trading Standards later in the year that prompted the
further visit to the premises by Michael Stedman in relation to the allegation of minors
purchasing alcohol. Michael again provided advice to the business operator.

Tracey Johnson

Assistant Manager - Trading Standards & Licensing

Climate Change, Compliance, Planning & Transport,

Economy, Innovation and Growth, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH

2 01914333934 T 07925306840 Y0 traceyjohnson@gateshead.gov.uk W Chat
with me on Teams!

Page 13


mailto:traceyjohnson@gateshead.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fchat%2F0%2F0%3Fusers%3Dtraceyjohnson%40gateshead.gov.uk&data=05%7C01%7CRebeccaSparrow%40Gateshead.Gov.UK%7C43abdf5084ec4244ef7e08da68b596b3%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C637937426365089940%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FV90%2BhIjCIo4chjbV72cBBHZSQU2onmeVRL4LSf%2FPu0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fchat%2F0%2F0%3Fusers%3Dtraceyjohnson%40gateshead.gov.uk&data=05%7C01%7CRebeccaSparrow%40Gateshead.Gov.UK%7C43abdf5084ec4244ef7e08da68b596b3%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C637937426365089940%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FV90%2BhIjCIo4chjbV72cBBHZSQU2onmeVRL4LSf%2FPu0%3D&reserved=0

This page is intentionally left blank



&= Gateshead

Council e

www.gateshead.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence

Premises Licence Number OOCH 04511
Part 1 - Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

168-170 Sheriff Highway
Sheriff Hill

Post town Gateshead | Postcode NE9 5SD

Telephone number

Where the licence is time limited, the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

For the sale by retail of alcohol (off the premises)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

For the sale by retail of alcohol:

Monday — Saturday 09:00 — 23:00 hours
Sunday 10:00 — 22:30 hours

The opening hours of the premises

Not Specified

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are On and/or Off supplies

Off the premises

Page 15




Part 2

Name,(registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Farhad Jamnejad
130 Canning Street
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE4 8UJ

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Not Applicable

Name, address and telephone number of Designated Premises Supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the sale of alcohol.

Amer Idris Paul
15 Ivanhoe View
Harlow Green
NE9 7TR

Personal Licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by Designhated
Premises Supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol.

0O0CH10470 Gateshead Council

Signature on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

Date Of Issue : 17 August 2019

Trading Standards, Licensing and Enforcement Manager
Communities and Environment

Page 16




Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

Supply of alcohol
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence;

a. Atatime when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or
b. Ata time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence.
3. (1) The premises licence holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the
premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of
alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age
(or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:

(a) A holographic mark, or

(b) An ultraviolet feature.

Prohibition on sale of alcohol below cost of duty plus VAT

1. Avrelevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption off the premises for a
price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —
a. ‘Duty’ is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
b. ‘Permitted price’ is the price found by applying the formula —

P=D+([DxV)

Where —

0] P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol.

c. ‘Relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence —

i. The holder of the premises licence,
ii. The designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
iii. The personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

d. ‘relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

e. ‘Value added tax’ means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph b of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a
whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually
given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

a. Sub-paragraph b below applies where the permitted price given by paragraph b of paragraph 2 on
a day (‘the first day’) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (‘the second day’)
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

b. The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which
take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 17



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

1. The Licensee, that is the person whose name the Premises Licence is issued, shall ensure that at all times
when the premises is open for any licensable activity, there are sufficient, competent staff on duty at the
premises for the purpose of fulfilling the terms and conditions of the licence and for preventing crime and
disorder.

2. A CCTV system shall be designed, installed and maintained in proper working order, to the satisfaction of
the Licensing Authority and in consultation with Northumbria Police. Such a system shall:

a. Ensure coverage of all entrances and exits to the Licensed Premises internally and externally,
including the till area.

b. Ensure coverage of such other areas as may be required by the Licensing Authority and
Northumbria Police.

c. Provide continuous recording facilities for each camera to a good standard of clarity. Such
recordings shall be retained (on tape or otherwise) for a period of 28 days, and shall be supplied to
the Licensing Authority or a Police Officer on request.

d. Be in operation at all times the premises are in use.

3. A‘challenge 25’ policy shall be adopted, ensuring that all members of staff at the premises shall refuse to
sell alcohol to anyone who appears to be under the age of 25 and who is seeking to purchase alcohol
unless that person provides credible photographic proof of age evidence.

4. Implementing and maintaining a ‘Challenge 25’ policy, including staff training to prevent underage sales,
and ensuring that all members of staff at the premises shall seek credible photographic proof of age
evidence from any person who appears to be under the age of 25 and who is seeking to purchase
cigarettes and/or alcohol. Such credible evidence, which shall include a photograph of the customer, will
either be a passport, photographic driving licence, or proof of age card carrying a ‘PASS’ logo.

5. Staff are to be given sufficient training agreed with the Licensing Authority in the control of age-restricted
products, refresher training for existing staff and training for all new staff.

6. Accurate training records are to be kept for all staff involved in sales of age restricted products.

7. Notices detailing the actions to be taken in the event of a fire or other emergency, including how to
summon the fire brigade shall be prominently displayed and protected from damage and deterioration.

\ Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing with the Licensing Authority

Not applicable

| Annex 4 - Copy of plan

Page 18



Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



= Ga teshead

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the completed
form for your records.

I/We (insert name)| Northumbria Police

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Sheriffs Highway Stores
168 -170 Sheriff Highway

Sheriff Hill
Post Town Post Code
Gateshead NE9 5SD

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Farhad JAMNEJAD

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known)

00CH 04511

PART 2 — DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v
1) A responsible authority (please complete (C) below) v
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below) [
3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below) O

Page 21



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for example, Rev)
Surname First Names
| am 18 years old or over Yes (Please Tick)

Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address
Northumbria Police
Central Area Command
Gateshead Police Station
High West Street

Gateshead

NE8 1BN

Telephone Number (If any) 101

E-Mail address (optional) licensing@northumbria.police.uk

This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder v
2. Public Safety O
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance O
4, The Protection of Children From Harm v

Page 22



Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

Northumbria Police are in support of the premises licence review due to the systemic failures identified at
these premises and the lack of confidence in the operator’s ability to promote the licensing objectives.

The licence review reveals poor management of the premises and failure to promote and uphold the
licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm,
whilst under the control of the current premises licence holder Farhad JAMNEJAD.

Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation

(Please read guidance note 2)
On the 23 June 2022 an application to review the premises licence at 168-170 Sheriffs Highway, Sheriff
Hill, Gateshead, NE9 5SD was lodged by Gateshead Council — Local Weights and Measures Authority.

Northumbria Police wish to support the authorities’ review.

The review was brought as a result of a test purchase exercise carried out at the premises on 24th
February 2022, when a 15 year old child volunteer was sold a bottle of Desperados Beer without being
prompted to show acceptable form of ID.

The result of this test purchase operation would support information the police received alleging underage
sales from these premises.

Please
Tick v/
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before? v
Day Month Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation 0 5 1 1 2 0 1 5

If you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when
you made them.

Premises Licence Review

9 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Departments and local
authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes
unless the law permits us to.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. If you want to know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH

Page 23



Part 3 — Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Signature

David Wheeler 7423

Date

01/07/22

Capacity

Chief Inspector Northumbria Police

Ivana Draper
Northumbria Police Licensing

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town

Post Code

Telephone Number (if any) | 101

E-mail Address (optional)

licensing@northumbria.police.uk

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representative’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH
Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

Page 24




@ Gateshead
m COW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the
completed form for your records.

I/We (insert name) Licensing Authority

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

168 Sheriff Highway

Sheriff Hill
Post Town Post Code
Gateshead NE9 5SD

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Farhad JAMNEJAD

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known)

00CHO04511

PART 2 — DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v/
1) A responsible authority (please complete (C) below) x
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below) I
3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below) Il

Page 25




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for example, Rev)

Surname First Names

| am 18 years old or over Yes (Please Tick)
Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address
Licensing Authority
Gateshead Council
Civic Centre
Regent Street
Gateshead

NES8 1HH

Telephone Number (If any)

0191 433 3933

E-Mail address (optional)

licensing@gateshead.gov.uk

Page 26




This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder t 4
2. Public Safety O
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance O
4, The Protection of Children From Harm

Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

The Licensing Authority in the capacity of a responsible authority have concerns regarding this

premises.

I have reviewed the content of the review application received on behalf of Local Weights and
Measures Authority.

| carried out an inspection of the premises on 13™ June 2022, at that time there were a number of
issues identified that gave rise to concerns.

When | visited, the premises licence summary was not on display and the premises licence could
not be located. Failure to produce the licence on request is an offence contrary to Section 57 of the
Licensing Act 2003.

| asked the member of staff present (Mr Jaafar Jaafar) who the designated premises supervisor
(DPS) was. He stated Amer Idris Paul no longer worked there and had not done for some time.
The licence holder Mr Farhad Jamnejad was spoken to via phone and he stated he had not

submitted an application to the Licensing Authority to vary the DPS as required.

The licence which could not be found at the time contains a number of conditions. | found several

breaches of those conditions.

Challenge 25 posters were on display and the member of staff was able to demonstrate which
forms of ID were acceptable. However, there were no training records available for any members
of staff and the member of staff was unable to recall last time they were provided with training. This
is a breach of a condition on the premises licence which requires accurate training records to be
held for all staff.

There is a CCTV system at the premises, however the member of staff was unable to demonstrate
that footage was retained for 28 days as required by the condition on the premises licence. This

represents a further breach.

Page 27




| emailed Mr Jamnejad on 14" June 2022 outlining the breaches which needed to be rectified. On
215 June 2022 he emailed me providing photographs of the premises licence on display, the front
of training materials used with signatures from staff to confirm they have received training. Its
should be noted that the training records were dated 10" May 2022. When | visited the premises
on 12 June 2022, the member of staff clearly stated they could not remember when they had last

received training.

| made an appointment with Mr Jamnejad to revisit the premises to confirm the breaches had been
rectified. | visited the premises as per the appointment on 14 July 2022. Whilst Mr Jamnejad was
able to show me the training materials book that had been used for the staff training other
breaches remained.

I noted that the on display was the first page of the Premises Licence only and not the Premises
Licence Summary as required. | spoke to Mr Jamnejad who stated he did not know where the copy
of the Summary was. Mr Jaafar stated he may have it at home and would check.

Mr Jamnejad was able to work the CCTV system. Whilst the system had the correct date and time
recorded, he was unable to demonstrate that the system retained the footage for 28 days as
required by the condition on the premises licence. He stated that an engineer had visited recently
(he was unable to provide a date) and he believed they had reset the system. Upon further checks,
| established that the CCTV had started recording at 08:00 on 14w July 2022 (the date of my follow
up visit), therefore only had 3 hours of retention. Mr Jamnejad stated the CCTV system belonged
to the landlord of the premises and he relies on her to fix it. | explained to Mr Jamnejad that as the
licence holder it was his responsibility to ensure that the conditions on his licence (CCTV being one
of them) was complied with. | am also aware that detailed in the review application it is stated that
CCTV system had stopped working an hour before the time footage had been requested as part of
a Trading Standards investigation. At that time Mr Jamnejad had been aware of the CCTV

condition on the premises licence.

After my visit Mr Jamnejad has emailed me photographs of the CCTV system as the hard drive
was replaced on 14" July 2022 and now should be retaining footage.

A further visit to check compliance will need to be carried out by Licensing.

The Licensing Authority regards effective management as one of the most important control
measures in achieving the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. There is very little evidence of
effective management. This gives rise to significant concerns around the premises and in particular

the manner in which Licensable Activities are carried out.

Page 28




Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation

(Please read guidance note 2)

The Licensing Authority reserves the right to provide further additional information and material so

far as considered relevant in accordance with the regulations.

Please

Tick v/
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before? O
Day Month Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation

Page 29



If you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them.

3 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Departments and local
authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes
unless the law permits us to.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. If you want to know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH

Page 30




Part 3 — Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Signature | K Jennings Date 19/07/2022

Capacity | Licensing Officer

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representative’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH
Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

Page 31




This page is intentionally left blank



Public Health Additional Information - 168 Sherriff Highway

Alcohol related ASB

gatesheadMaps
o 9

[Deckham]

M 1soas

gatesheadMaps
A

Windy #
Nook
and
W hitehills
Ward

Worst Quintile v warss B iLSOAs

Page 33

168 Sheriff Highway

168 Sheriff Highway




School absences

168 Sheriff Highway

>ontains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020 | Sourc...

Families where health is cited as an issue

gatesheadMaps
o 9

168 Sheriff Highway

ontains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020 | Sourc...

Best Quintile Worst Quintile

Page 34




@ Gateshead
m COW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the
completed form for your records.

I/We (Insert name)| p,plic Health

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

168 Sherriff Highway
Sheriff Hill

Post Town Gateshead Post Code NE9 5SD

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Farhad Jamnejad

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known)

00CHO04511

PART 2 — DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v
1) A responsible authority (please complete (C) below) v
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below)
3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below)

Page 35




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for example, Rev)

Surname First Names

| am 18 years old or over Yes (Please Tick)
Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address
Name and Address

Alice Wiseman

Director of Public Health for Gateshead

Gateshead Civic Centre
Regents Terrace
Gateshead

NE8 1HH

Telephone Number (If any)

0191 433 2777

E-Mail address (optional)

Page 36




This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder v
2. Public Safety O
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance O
4, The Protection of Children From Harm 4

Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

This representation is made in my capacity as Director of Public Health for the Borough of
Gateshead.

Since 2013 Directors of Public Health have been ‘responsible authorities’ under the Licensing Act
2003.The role of the Director of Public Health is to help promote the health and wellbeing of the
local populations they serve. The Public Health approach to reducing harms arising from alcohol
misuse is to encourage and promote responsible drinking and protect young people from related
harm. This is an expansive remit that influences a wide range of circumstances, including local
licensing arrangements. Similarly, the licensing regime is concerned with the promotion of the
licensing objectives, which collectively seek to protect the quality of life for those who live, and

work in the vicinity of licensed premises, and those who socialise in licensed premises.

| agree with the concerns raised by the Local Weights and Measures Authority in their application
for a review. It is clear from the detail provided in the review that the licensing objectives are not
being upheld. The level of disregard towards the law, the lack of adherence to child protection and
the lack of staff awareness/training and up to date administration is concerning and shows that the
premises is not robust enough. The illegal tobacco supplies linked to the premises show further
disregard for the safety of the community. This could cause significant impact to the local

community’s health and wellbeing.

Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation

(Please read guidance note 2)

Chief Medical Officer guidelines are clear that children should drink no alcohol before the age of
15 but an alcohol free childhood up to the age of 18 is the best and safest option, with alcohol

linked to health problems, and accidents and with children’s brains still developing until their 20s.

- In 2018/19 — 2020/21 there were 60 hospital admissions in Gateshead for under 18s due to
alcohol-specific conditions, a crude rate of 50.8 per 100,000, compared with an England
average of 29.3 per 100,000.

Page 37




Alcohol consumption among young people has been linked to a range of negative outcomes, both
contemporary (such as lower educational attainment, smoking and criminal behaviour) and later
in life (such as increased risk of drug and alcohol dependence and poorer mental and physical
health).

The risks from drinking alcohol before our children reach adulthood include:

e Changes or delays to the development of the logical, thoughtful part of the brain

o Alcohol can affect all the different systems in the body and the fact that children’s organs
are still developing can make them particularly vulnerable

e Alcohol can affect a child’s mental health. At a time when mental illness in childhood is
increasingly in the media, this highlights why it’s essential we protect children from access
alcohol before the age of 18.

¢ Drinking can affect how well a child does at school.

e Alcohol can lead to other risky, impulsive behaviour. Young people who drink regularly are
four times more likely to smoke and three times more likely to take other, illegal drugs and
more likely to get hurt due to an accident or as a result of violence

e Young people who drink before they are 15 are four times more likely to be dependent on
alcohol later in life.

Poorer populations and communities experience a disproportionately greater level of alcohol-
attributable harm. Reports are provided which show the area surrounding the premises in relation
to alcohol related anti social behaviour, the Index of Multiple Deprivation, and level of
unauthorised school absences. This is in the additional information which accompanies this

representation.

Young people, especially those in our most deprived communities have been negatively impacted
during the COVID-19 pandemic due to loss of education, routine, formal and informal support,
access to services and support from school. Therefore, it is vital at this time that children in our
communities are protected from the long-term harm caused by a premise not acting in
accordance with the licensing objectives. Although more of our children are choosing not to drink
alcohol, we need to do everything in our power to encourage that trend and support our children

in making healthy decisions.

Tobacco use amongst young people can cause serious long-term damage. Earlier smoking is
associated with being a heavier smoker in later life with a lower chance of quitting, and serious
respiratory health risks, impairing lung growth and premature lung function decline. Those living
in more deprived areas are four times more likely to smoke than those in the least deprived

areas, with a higher chance of inter-generational cycle, and disproportionally high rates in certain

Page 38




groups such as those with mental health concerns. The illicit tobacco found in this property will
undoubtedly contribute to this cycle and negatively affect the prevalence of young smokers in
addition to impacting on the health of smokers of all ages — making it harder to reach the
Government aims of the Tobacco Control Plan 2017. Information is provided which shows

families in the vicinity of the premises where health is cited as an issue.

My support of this review is informed by the growing knowledge of the role of alcohol and
smoking in a wide range of acute and chronic disorders, and a greater understanding of its
negative social impacts. Licensing is and always has been a whole population intervention which
should be employed to protect our population from harm.

If the committee chose to add more conditions to the licence as a result of this review, Public
Health would be able to provide Point of Sale information about underage and proxy sales for the
premises to display as a reminder to staff and customers of the potential harm caused to young
people.

References

CMO for England (2009) Guidance on the consumption of alcohol by children and young people.
Department of Education (2010) Young people’s alcohol consumption and its relationship to other
outcomes and behaviour

Blackpool JSNA: Tobacco use in Children and Young People (Tobacco use in children and

younq people (blackpooljsna.org.uk)

Government Tobacco Control Plan (2017)

Public Health Outcomes Framework - https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/
Build Back Fairer — The Covid 19 Marmot Report

AFS & SHAAP (2011) Re-thinking alcohol licensing

Balance - What's the Harm — www.whatstheharm.co.uk

Page 39



https://www.blackpooljsna.org.uk/Developing-Well/Children-and-young-peoples-health/Tobacco-use-in-children-and-young-people.aspx
https://www.blackpooljsna.org.uk/Developing-Well/Children-and-young-peoples-health/Tobacco-use-in-children-and-young-people.aspx
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/
http://www.whatstheharm.co.uk/

Please

Tick v/
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before? O
Day Month Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation

If you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them.

3 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Departments and local
authorities.

Page 40




We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes
unless the law permits us to.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. If you want to know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH

Page 41



Part 3 — Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Date

Ké(/&t( /{/:f’:zéﬁ%?f?‘ 14/07/2022

Signature

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representative’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH
Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

Page 42




@ Gateshead
m COW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the
completed form for your records.

I/IWe (nsert name)| Gateshead Safeguarding Children Partnership (GSCP)

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

168 Sheriff Highway

Sheriff Hill
Post Town Post Code
Gateshead Ne9 5SD

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Farhad JAMNEJAD

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known)
00CH 04511

PART 2 — DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v/
1) A responsible authority (please complete (C) below) v
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below) [
3) Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below) O

Page 43




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other Title (for example, Rev)

Surname First Names

| am 18 years old or over Yes (Please Tick)
Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address

Saira Park, Business Manager (on behalf of GSCP)

Safeguarding Business Unit

1%t Floor, Civic Centre
Regent Street, Gateshead
NE8 1HH

Page 44




Telephone Number (If any) 0191 433 8010

E-Mail address (optional) sairapark@qgateshead.gov.uk

This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v/
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder O
2. Public Safety O
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance O
4, The Protection of Children From Harm v

Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

Gateshead Safeguarding Children Partnership (GSCP) is the body responsible for the protection of children
from harm. The GSCP is concerned that the licensable activities taking place at Sheriffs Highway Stores Ltd
are not in accordance with the promotion of another licensing objective, which is the protection of children

from harm.

It has come to the attention of the GSCP that on 24th February 2022, a test purchase exercise using a 15
year old child volunteer was carried out at the premises Sheriffs Highway Stores Ltd, 168 — 170 Sheriff
Highway, Gateshead NE9 5SD, and the child was sold a bottle of Desperados Beer. This is an alcoholic
beverage containing 5.9% alcohol. | believe that this act undermines the licensing objective of the protection
of children from harm and contributes to the antisocial behaviour caused by youths consuming alcohol in the

area.

Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation

(Please read guidance note 2)

Safeguarding Partnerships are the key statutory mechanism for protecting children from harm and agreeing
how the relevant organisations in each local area will cooperate to safeguard and promote the welfare of

children, and for ensuring the effectiveness of what they do.

Access to alcohol by young people and the resulting crime and disorder is a significant community problem
that impacts on crime, and the fear of crime, within many areas of the Borough as well as being an issue that

puts children and young people at risk themselves.

The vision of safeguarding partnership is that every child should grow up in a loving and secure environment,
which is free from abuse, neglect and crime, enabling them to enjoy good health and fulfil their social and
educational potential. Evidence suggests that binge drinking in adolescence could limit opportunities for this
to occur and therefore the safeguarding partnership is keen to ensure that licensees restrict access to

alcohol by underage drinkers and have processes in place to ensure the protection of children from harm.

Page 45



mailto:sairapark@gateshead.gov.uk

Research suggests that the adolescent brain may be uniquely sensitive to alcohol’s effects due to the major
changes in brain structure and function that occur during this developmental period. Studies have found that

binge drinking by youths is also associated with alcohol-related violence and other anti-social behaviours.

A UK study found that binge drinking in adolescence was associated with an increased risk of health, social,
educational and economic adversity continuing into later adult life. Alcohol intoxication can occur during
binge drinking and the acute toxic effects are generally related to blood alcohol concentrations. There is
evidence to suggest that the severe hypoglycaemia (low blood sugar) that can accompany alcohol

intoxication and may result in coma occurs more commonly in adolescents than adults.

Deaths from alcohol poisoning appear to occur most often when relatively inexperienced drinkers consume

very large amounts of alcohol in a short time.

Re SHERIFFS HIGHWAY STORE:

The test purchase exercise was carried out following complaints received to the trading standards

service from local police and councillors of youths drinking alcohol and causing ASB in the area.

The shop was visited on 27th May 2021 and on 2nd December 2021 to provide advice in relation to
underage sales and provide the business with tools to prevent sales to underage persons. An advice
information pack was left with Jaafar JAAFAR on 27" May 2021 who confirmed he was the business
owner at that time. The licence holder was confirmed as Farhad JAMNEJAD.

The test purchase exercise was carried out on 24th February 2022 and the young person was sold
alcohol without being required to produce ID. It was confirmed that both parties own the business
that operates from the premises with Mr JAMNEJAD being sole director but Mr JAAFAR being a

person with significant control so the directing mind of the business.

The sale was carried out by an employee who had been working with the business only a short
matter of time and hadn’t been given any training by either of the business owners. Also, no training

records could be produced by either of the business operators.

The seller could not find the refusals book when asked for this on the date of the sale. They do
operate a challenge 25 policy, but this was not followed on the date of the sale. They confirmed that
DPS Amer Idris PAUL is no longer working for them and had left the company a few months before.
They had failed to notify the licensing section with regards to the change and didn’t realise they had
to.

Intelligence to trading standards in relation to possible sales of illegal tobacco from the premises
had also been reported that were taking place at the van owned by Mr JAAFAR outside of the
premises. When trading standards had visited the premises in order to view the CCTV of this alleged
act, it was found that the CCTV system had stopped working one hour before the time we had
requested to view it. An inspection of the vehicle at that time was carried out and 6 packets of illegal

tobacco were found in a carrier bag.

Page 46




Trading standards do not believe that this premises is operating well and that the licensing
objectives are being undermined. The GSCP feel they are putting children at risk of harm and are

contributing to antisocial behaviour in the area.

Please

Tick v
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before? O
Day Month Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation

If you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them.

3 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Departments and local
authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes
unless the law permits us to.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controller for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. If you want to know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH

Part 3 — Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Signature 5\‘/‘ Date 20/07/2022

Capacity

Gateshead Safeguarding Children Partnership

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

Page 47




Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representative’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they

have actual authority to do so.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,

Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH

Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

o

Page 48




Representation from Councillor Dawn Welsh
Received email on 20 July 2022

Dear Rebecca,

Thank you for emailing me with your request for representation, it was extremely timely. | was just
about to raise the issue of the conduct of this shop with licensing anyway, as it has been raised with
me by residents and | have personally witnessed some potential issues.

| have lived (redacted address detail) , not far from this shop, for 20 years now, and since it recently
changed hands, | have noticed a marked increase in anti-social behaviour which | can directly
attribute to this shop, details of which are:

e  Whilst walking past the shop a couple of months ago, | witness two people (male and
female) sitting in the rear fenced yard of the shop clearly very much the worse for wear on
either drink, drugs, or both. The shop has cctv all around it with a large screen at the
counter, so | fail to see how the owner could possibly have unaware that they were there

o  Whilst driving past the shop a few weeks ago | witnessed the owner, with a group of about 5
teenagers who | would say were about 15 years old, showing them something in the boot of
a small red car. It seemed a very unusual thing for him to be doing and the way the
teenagers were looking about them to see who was looking, looked very suspicious.

e Only yesterday evening, as a friend and | stopped at the junction of Church Road, waiting to
pull out on to Old Durham Road, there was a man stood outside of the shop quite clearly
smoking cannabis.

e Onthe odd occasion | have been inside the shop recently, there is always a couple of men
milling around, looking decidedly dodgy and as soon as you walk in the conversation stops.
I’'m afraid | have been around the block enough times to have a very well-developed radar
for when something isn’t quite right.

e Aslnow live (redacted address details) , | am very much aware that teenagers use it
(inserted St John’s Church yard for context) on a regular basis to congregate and drink
alcohol |. Some of these teenagers | know to be 15 & 16 years old, and without fail, the bags
they have from when they have purchased the alcohol are always blue plastic. | also know
that of the two shops at the top of Church Road, it is Sheriff Highway Stores which uses blue
plastic bags, as the shop on the other side of the road uses white carrier bags. Therefore, |
can only conclude that this shop is directly contributing to the anti-social behaviour of
teenagers drinking alcohol in the church yard.

e It has also been raised with me, by a number of parents in Low Fell, that they know their
15/16 year old sons are walking up to Sheriff Highway stores specifically to purchase alcohol
| and single use vapes, as it is widely known amongst the teenagers of Low Fell that this store
will sell these items to them - without asking questions.

In conclusion, it is my considered opinion that the current owner is not suitable to hold a licence for
the sale of alcohol and tobacco, as his conduct contributes to harm to minors, anti-social behaviour,
potential criminal activity and a a general nuisance to residents of the area

Kind regards

Councillor Dawn Welsh
Get Outlook for iO

Page 49


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fo0ukef&data=05%7C01%7CRebeccaSparrow%40Gateshead.Gov.UK%7C54885449692e47580f8008da6a911278%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C637939468551526350%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=99jvbSOF%2FsrplWnVkkubPbsAdu0IfX8YcTDXuGqM7X4%3D&reserved=0

From: Rebecca L Sparrow <RebeccaSparrow@Gateshead.Gov.UK>

Sent: Thursday, June 23, 2022 1:29:37 PM

To: CE Licensing <Licensing@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Elaine Rudman
<ElaineRudman@Gateshead.Gov.Uk>; Tim Briton <TimBriton@Gateshead.Gov.UK>;
'licensing@northumbria.pnn.police.uk' <'licensing@northumbria.pnn.police.uk'>; Anneliese
Hutchinson <AnnelieseHutchinson@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Peter Wright
<PeterWright@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Stewart Sorrell <StewartSorrell@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Tracey
Johnson <TraceyJohnson@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Gemma Thompson
<GemmaThompson@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Emma Lucas <EmmalLucas@Gateshead.Gov.Uk>;
'Firesafety.licensing@twfire.gov.uk' <'Firesafety.licensing@twfire.gov.uk'>; Alice Wiseman
<AliceWiseman@ Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Saira Park <SairaPark@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; CE
Environmental Health <EnvironmentalHealth@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Mike Aynsley
<MichaelAynsley@Gateshead.Gov.Uk>; Sonia Stewart <SoniaStewart@ Gateshead.Gov.Uk>; CE
Highway Events <CEHighwayEvents@ Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Eleanor Cockbain
<EleanorCockbain@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Julia Sharp <JuliaSharp@ Gateshead.Gov.UK>; All Council
Members <AllCouncilMembers@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Adam Lindridge

<AdamLindridge @Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Gemma McDermott
<GemmaMcDermott@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; CE Planning <Planning@gateshead.gov.uk>; Angus
Pinder <AngusPinder@ Gateshead.Gov.UK>

Subject: 220720 Licensing Act 2003: Application to review a premises licence- 168-170 Sheriffs
Highway, Gateshead, NE9 55D

Good Afternoon
Please find below information regarding an application to review a premises licence

Responsible Authorities should have already received copies of the application via email. If you
haven’t yet received your copy please let me know.

Application to review a premises licence

Applicant: Gateshead Council’s Local Weights and Measures Authority

Premises & Address: 168-170 Sheriffs Highway, Gateshead, NE9 5SD. This premises is sometimes
referred to as Sheriffs Highway Stores.

Summary of application:

On 24™ February 2022, a test purchase exercise using a 15 year old child volunteer was
carried out at the premises and the child was sold a bottle of Desperados Beer. This is an alcoholic
beverage containing 5.9% alcohol.

The application relates to the licensing objectives of prevention of crime and disorder and
the protection of children from harm.

Date Received: 22 June 2022
Last Date for Representations: 20 July 2022
Deadline for Hearing (if required): 17 August 2022

If you require more information about the application please email the Licensing Team via
licensing@gateshead.gov.uk and we can assist.

Page 50


mailto:RebeccaSparrow@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:Licensing@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:ElaineRudman@Gateshead.Gov.Uk
mailto:TimBriton@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:AnnelieseHutchinson@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:PeterWright@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:StewartSorrell@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:TraceyJohnson@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:GemmaThompson@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:EmmaLucas@Gateshead.Gov.Uk
mailto:AliceWiseman@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:SairaPark@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:EnvironmentalHealth@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:MichaelAynsley@Gateshead.Gov.Uk
mailto:SoniaStewart@Gateshead.Gov.Uk
mailto:CEHighwayEvents@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:EleanorCockbain@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:JuliaSharp@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:AllCouncilMembers@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:AdamLindridge@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:GemmaMcDermott@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:Planning@gateshead.gov.uk
mailto:AngusPinder@Gateshead.Gov.UK
mailto:licensing@gateshead.gov.uk

If you wish to make a representation you must do so in writing on or before the last date of
representations (as detailed above). To be considered a relevant representation you should refer to
the licensing objectives. For clarity the Licensing Objectives are:

e The prevention of crime and disorder
Public Safety
e The prevention of public nuisance
e The protection of children from harm.

I've attached a representation form as some people find this useful when they make
representations. However, please note that you do not have to use this form.

Kind regards

Rebecca Sparrow
Licensing Officer

Economy, Innovation and Growth,
Gateshead Council Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH
& 07712543784 B rebeccasparrow@gateshead.gov.uk

Page 51


mailto:rebeccasparrow@gateshead.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Representation from Emma Eltringham
Email received on 18 July 2022

(Redacted email address)

Sent: 18 July 2022 14:38

To: Rebecca L Sparrow <RebeccaSparrow @ Gateshead.Gov.UK>

Subject: RE: Licensing Review for the property 168-170 Sheriff Highway, Gateshead, NE9 55D

Dear Rebecca,

Apologies but | thought my previous e-mail was making representations on behalf of the current
owner. Thank you for confirming that the current owner has no history of under age selling, which
backs up my observations over the years. That given, | must again stress again how incendiary it is to
state, in these times, that a muslim man is being investigated to ‘Protect children from harm’. This
really is inflammatory and there was no need to put such language on a poster outside that person’s
shop.

| do not wish to attend the sub committee but | would like my previous observations noted.
Thank you in advance

Yours sincerely

Emma Eltringham

Sent from Mail for Windows

From: Rebecca L Sparrow

Sent: 18 July 2022 13:54
(Email address redacted)

Cc: CE Licensing
Subject: FW: Licensing Review for the property 168-170 Sheriff Highway, Gateshead, NE9 55D

Dear Emma
Thank you for your email.

I've attached a copy of the review application for your information. The application itself contains
more information then what can be detailed on any notice.

The protection of children from harm is one of the four licensing objectives that are outlined in the
Licensing Act 2003. The other objectives are:

1. Prevention of crime and disorder

2. Public safety

3. Prevention of public nuisance.

All applications and representations on applications must relate to how one or more of those

objective are impacted. This is why along with the prevention of crime and disorder it is mentioned
on the review notice and application.

Page 53


mailto:RebeccaSparrow@Gateshead.Gov.UK
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink%2F%3FLinkId%3D550986&data=05%7C01%7CRebeccaSparrow%40gateshead.gov.uk%7C28cae6a10cdb414b87b608da68c2ccef%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C637937483119137205%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fhXLtWpSlKtHLv%2FFNZKf6Gb8o73ruQ4QXvR2faHUBJU%3D&reserved=0
mailto:RebeccaSparrow@gateshead.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing@gateshead.gov.uk

Would you like to make a representation on the application? If you would like to make a
representation you would need to do so no later than 20 July 2022. All relevant representations are
included in a public report and you would be invited to (if you wished to) attend the Licensing Sub-
Committee that will determine the application. All representations must be received in writing via
paper or email. You can find more information about the process at the following webpage:
Current licensing applications - Gateshead Council

If you have any questions then please don’t hesitate to contact me.
Kind regards

Rebecca Sparrow
Licensing Officer

Economy, Innovation and Growth,
Gateshead Council Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE8 1HH
& 07712543784 B rebeccasparrow@gateshead.gov.uk

(Redacted email address)

Sent: 17 July 2022 23:09

To: CE Licensing <Licensing@Gateshead.Gov.UK>

Subject: Licensing Review for the property 168-170 Sheriff Highway, Gateshead, NE9 55D

| noticed the license review posted outside of the above mentioned shop and as a long time
customer (over 10 years) | would like to make the following observations:-

1. | have personally seen the current proprietor request ID and refuse service to many people
who appear underage on many occasions. The notice states that the licence is being
reviewed for ‘The protection of children from harm’, which | believe is unfounded given the
history of the establishment through all it’s various owners in the past 10 years. I've also
noticed that the current proprietor refuses to sell alcohol to anyone that he believes is
incapable due to drink/drugs. If the selling to children was a common occurrence then this
review application would have a point, but for only one instance being sighted, | believe
even including those words on the notice is both unnecessary and possibly dangerous given
the current obsession of the right wing with muslim men and young women.

2. When | spoke to the previous owner he advised me that without a drinks license he would
not be able to continue. | understand that the current owner has attempted to diversify the
shop however from my own experience when visiting the shop, usually 3 times a week, |
believe that alcoholic sales still add up to a substantial amount of daily takings. | was under
the impression that it is Gateshead MBC policy to promote local businesses not push people
to use Supermarkets by causing the closure of more local community stores.

As a final sentence | would just re-iterate that after reading this notice justifying a review and
providing only one instance of rule breaking seems more like overreach to me, surely a fine would

have been the best way forward.

If you require any further information from me please let me know.

Page 54


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gateshead.gov.uk%2Farticle%2F3449%2FCurrent-licensing-applications&data=05%7C01%7CRebeccaSparrow%40gateshead.gov.uk%7C28cae6a10cdb414b87b608da68c2ccef%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C637937483119137205%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xkKYPL0tKBSHeXMzkWdfMuUvKz0DCsWGxtBfsrSBYvo%3D&reserved=0
mailto:rebeccasparrow@gateshead.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing@Gateshead.Gov.UK

Yours faithfully

Emma Eltringham

Sent from Mail for Windows

ok ok ok ok ok ok o ok K ok ok ok ok o o ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok o K oK ok sk ok o X

Important Information

This e-mail and its attachments may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author
and do not necessarily represent those of Gateshead Council.

If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail and its attachments, you must take no action
based upon them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone. Communications by e-mail are not

guaranteed to be private or secure.

Please contact the sender if you believe you have received this e-mail in error.

3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k 3k %k 3k 3k 3k %k %k 3k 3k 5k sk sk sk 3k sk ok sk sk sk 3k ok 5k sk sk sk k ok sk ok

Page 55


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink%2F%3FLinkId%3D550986&data=05%7C01%7CRebeccaSparrow%40gateshead.gov.uk%7C28cae6a10cdb414b87b608da68c2ccef%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C637937483119137205%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fhXLtWpSlKtHLv%2FFNZKf6Gb8o73ruQ4QXvR2faHUBJU%3D&reserved=0

This page is intentionally left blank



= Ga teshead
m COLm/CLI__‘__,gs——

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
Licensing Act 2003
7 January 2021 - 6 January 2026

7 January 2016 1

Page 57




1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Foreword by Councillor John McEiroy

The Licensing Act has been in force now for ten years, and has contributed to a
significant change in how licensable activities are carried on in the Borough.

In Gateshead, both the licensed trade and its patrons are, on the whole,
responsible and sensitive to the needs of the communities in which licensed
activities take place.

However, the trend away from drinking in pubs and clubs to consumption of alcohol
at home presents a different set of challenges in terms of minimizing the harms that
can arise.

There has been an increase in the availability and accessibility of alcohol, and a
broadening of the type of premises where it is made available. Consequently, there
is now an increased role for the licensing regime to play in safeguarding the most
vulnerable members of our society.

The licensing regime is not only about the sale and supply of alcohol — the
provision of regulated entertainment and late night refreshment equally present
challenges to ensure that crime, disorder and public nuisance are prevented, public
safety is promoted and children are protected from harm.

There is no single answer to the challenges we will face in the coming months and
years; but the licensing regime is key to giving residents and responsible authorities
an opportunity to have their say on important matters that can impact their
community, and | would encourage everyone to utilise it to its fullest potential.

Strategic Context

The Council's overall vision for Gateshead, as described in Gateshead Strategic
Partnership’s Community Strategy — Vision 2030 and the Council's Corporate Plan
is:

“‘Local people realising their full potential, enjoying the best quality of life in a
healthy, equal, safe, prosperous and sustainable Gateshead”

The licensing of premises plays an important role in realising this vision,
contributing significantly to the Economy, Environment, and Heaith areas contained
within Priority 1 of the Corporate Plan, in providing safe and accessible venues that
promote healthy lifestyles and contribute to economy of the Borough.

This Policy sets out what this Licensing Authority expects of the people that it
authorises to carry out licensable activities in the Borough of Gateshead.

Applicants and licensees are of course expected to be familiar with the relevant
legislation and the National Guidance issued by the Home Office, but they are also
expected to be familiar with the exigencies of the locality that they operate in. This
applies to everyone seeking to carry on licensable activiies in the Borough,
whether they are a large national chain or a small community premises.

7 January 2016 3

Page 58




2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The promotion of the licensing objectives underpins every decision that the
Licensing Authority makes. How the objectives are best promoted can vary from
place to place, and depending on the nature and scale of the activities that are to
be carried out. This Policy sets out the issues that are of particular relevance or
concern within Gateshead, and the approaches that this Licensing Authority would
expect responsible licensees to take into account in their operation.

The Policy links closely with a number of key plans and strategies produced by the
Council and its partners, as set out below in the section headed ‘Integration with
other legislation, policies and guidance’.

Local context

Gateshead is located on the southern bank of the river Tyne, opposite Newcastle
upon Tyne to the north, and bordering County Durham to the south, Northumberland
to the west and South Tyneside/Sunderland to the east. It is a constantly changing
borough combining modern facilities with a fascinating heritage. The borough
stretches almost 13 miles along the south bank of the river Tyne and covers 55
square miles, making it the largest of the five Tyne and Wear authorities.

Gateshead is a borough of contrasts. It has a large urban hub centred around the
main town centre area in Bridges ward and has a number of smaller urban centres
and busy employment areas such as Blaydon, Whickham, Felling and Birtley.
However, around two thirds of the borough is rural with numerous small settlements
such as Kibblesworth, Sunniside, Chopwell and High Spen.

Built on traditional industries of mining and heavy engineering, the 1930’s saw
diversification through the development of the Team Valley Trading Estate (TVTE),
the first trading estate of its type in the UK. Centrally located for the region the TVTE
has become prominent for transport and distribution activities and is the borough’s
most prestigious employment centre, attracting the highest number of inward
commuters to the borough on a daily basis.

The 1970s saw the decline of many of the region’s traditional industries. A high
proportion of those who lived in Gateshead worked in these industries, resulting in
unemployment and high levels of deprivation and financial/social exclusion, the
impact of which is still being felt today. In the 1980’s Gateshead saw the development
of the MetroCentre, now boasting over two million sq ft of retail and leisure floor
space, one of the UK’s and Europe’s largest shopping centres.

The urban core, shared with Newcastle, is the focus of regeneration, promoting
growth through the digital economy, knowledge-based businesses and cultural-led
regeneration. Major initiatives such as the Sage Gateshead, BALTIC Centre for
Contemporary Ant, Gateshead College and the Gateshead Millennium Bridge have
all been developed over recent years.

Gateshead has a population of around 200,000 living in 90,600 households. The
population has reduced by around 13,000 since the 1980’s but has grown over the
last decade by around 8,000. This growth has been most significant for older age
groups with an 11% increase in 45-64 year olds and an 11% increase in those aged
65 and over. In contrast, the number of 0-24 year olds fell slightly by 0.7% over the
decade. Population projections from the Office for National Statistics predict that this

7 January 2016 4

Page 59




3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

ageing population trend will continue into the future, becoming more pronounced as
life expectancy continues to increase.

Crime and anti-social behaviour in Gateshead

The number of recorded crimes across the Borough that were linked to alcohol has
increased year on year, with 1,386 alcohol-related crimes recorded in 2014/15 which
was an 11% increase from 2013/14, compared to a 7% increase in all crime.

More than half the alcohol-related crimes in the Borough in 2014/15 were violence
against the person, with significant increases particularly in the number of assaults.
It is notable that whilst incidents of the most serious violence are still relatively
infrequent, they have more than doubled in the last year. There have also been
significant increases in the numbers of alcohol-related sexual offences and burglaries
in the Borough in that time.

Temporal profiles show that almost half of all alcohol-related crimes in the Borough
are reported on Friday late evenings / Saturday early mornings, Saturday late
evenings / Sunday early mornings and (to a lesser extent) Sunday late evenings /
Monday early mornings.

Data provided by Northumbria Police enables the Council to identify the most
vulnerable locations throughout the Borough in terms of alcohol-related crimes, and
to track trends over time. Information about these areas is contained in ‘Local
Licensing Guidance’ documents which are described in further detail below, and will
be available from the Council’s website and upon request.

Public health in Gateshead

In 2012 the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced public health as a
responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003.

Public health is “the science and art of promoting and protecting health and well-
being, preventing ill-health and prolonging life through the organised efforts of
society.” The Public Health Outcomes Framework acknowledges that health is
influenced not only by lifestyle choices but also by a range of wider determinants,
including the physical environment, domestic abuse, violent crime and noise
nuisance.

Gateshead Council recognises the impact upon population-level health that alcohol
consumption can cause. While the protection of public health is not a discrete
licensing objective, it can where appropriate permeate each of the licensing
objectives.

Each year Gateshead’s Director of Public Health publishes an Annual Report, the
most recent at the time of writing being published in October 2014. The report
recognises that alcohol is a complex social issue which forms part of our everyday
social fabric, is a source of pleasure and enjoyment to many; but is also a potentially
addictive substance which is promoted by powerful commercial forces, especially to
young people. It highlights the growing evidence of rising alcohol harm on the health
of people in Gateshead, and focusses on approaches to tackling alcohol harm.

7 January 2016 5

Page 60




3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

The report identifies, for instance, that:

¢ Around one in 5 secondary school / higher education students in Gateshead
admit to drinking alcohol; and

* The number of alcohol specific hospital admissions for secondary school /
higher education students in Gateshead is increasing.

Public health data enables the Council to identify the most vulnerable locations in the
Borough in terms of alcohol-related harm, and to track trends over time. This data
can be particularly relevant to the protection of children from harm, and may also
assist in the prevention of crime and disorder, public nuisance and to public safety.

Local Licensing Guidance

Different localities within the Borough have different characters, and challenges, both
of which can change over time depending on a range of factors. To assist applicants
and licensees in their understanding of local issues that they should be cognisant of,
from time to time the Council publishes and updates ‘Local Licensing Guidance’
documents on its website.

The Local Licensing Guidance provides information about the causes of serious and
chronic concern in these localities. The areas covered by the guidance can vary
depending on the nature of the problems that are identified, so may relate to the
whole of a particular Ward or for instance to street level. The guidance can include
a wide range of information that is considered to be relevant to those who seek to
carry on licensable activities within the area, for instance:

* The physical environment (including transport, school walking routes, blocks
of flats, commercial / residential proximity, etc)

¢ Existing licensed premises

* Health data (such as hospital admissions for under-18s, ambulance calls for
alcohol related reasons)

* Crime and disorder hotspots

* Known areas of congregation

* Local initiatives (such as Pubwatch, Offwatch, Community Alcohol
Partnerships etc)

* Local concerns about the promotion of the licensing objectives (including
from Ward Members, community leaders, GPs, schools, etc)

The Local Licensing Guidance will be produced by the Council’s Public Health team
with the input of Responsible Authorities and other stakeholders as appropriate; and
presented to and approved by the Council’s full Licensing Committee.

It is recommended that applicants and licensees have regard to these documents
when considering their operating schedule. In particular, where the Local Licensing
Guidance identifies measures that it is believed will help to promote the licensing
objectives in respect of certain licensable activities due to the issues that have been
identified, if an applicant or licensee chooses not to adopt those measures this may
result in representations being made.

Legal Context

7 January 2016 6

Page 61




4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182
of the Act.

The Licensing Authority is responsible for:

* the licensing of licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act)

* ensuring that those who are authorised under the Act comply with the
requirements; and

® ensuring that only those who are duly authorised to carry out licensable
activities do so.

This document sets out the Licensing Authority’s policy as to how it will fulfil its
obligations and achieve its strategic aims in this respect.

This Policy should be read in conjunction with the Act itself, the Home Office
Guidance, and the other policies and guidance that are referred to in this document.

This Licensing Authority regards each of the Licensing Objective to be of equal
importance.

This document sets out the policies the Licensing Authority will generally apply to
promote the Licensing Objectives when making decisions under the Act, and when
addressing non-compliance with the Act itself or any authorisations issued under the
Act. The Licensing Authority will consider deviating from the policy on a case by case
basis, where it believes it to be appropriate and proportionate in all the relevant
circumstances.

Integration with other legislation, policies and guidance

Anyone who is or who seeks to be authorised under the Act to carry out licensable
activities in the Borough of Gateshead should be aware of the other legislation,
policies and guidance that may apply to their business. Failure to comply with other
legislation and/or regulatory regimes can indicate that a licensee is irresponsible,
which may call into question their ability to adequately promote the Licensing
Objectives.

Although from the perspective of the business proprietor, there may be an element
of crossover between licensing and other regimes, they are separate and are treated
as such by the Council.

Applicants and licensees need to be aware of and have regard to:

Gateshead Strategic Partnership’s Community Strategy — Vision 2030

the Gateshead Local Plan

Substance Misuse Strategy

Culture Strategy

Gateshead Transport Strategy & Tyne & Wear Local Transport Plan

The Local Government Declaration on Alcohol signed by Gateshead Council
in June 2015

® & o @ o o

7 January 2016 7

Page 62




54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

The Licensing Authority will seek to achieve integration with relevant strategies and
their aims in its decision making.

Human Rights

The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to the following relevant provisions
of the European Convention on Human Rights:

* Article 6 that in determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is entitled
to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and
impartial tribunal established by law

* Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect for their home and private life;
and

* Article 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to the peaceful
enjoyment of their possessions.

Equality and Diversity

Applicants and licensees should be aware of their obligations under the Equality Act
2010 and the characteristics protected by the legislation which are:

Age

Disability

Gender reassignment
Marriage and civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity
Race

Religion and belief

Sex; and

Sexual orientation

It is expected that responsible licensees will be sensitive to the needs of their varied
customer base and prepared to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate
those needs.

The Equality Act 2010 also requires the Licensing Authority to have due regard to the
need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance equality of
opportunity; and foster good relations between people with different protected
characteristics. Each application will be considered with this in mind.

Crime and disorder

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 introduced a wide range of measures
for preventing crime and disorder and imposed a duty on the Council, Northumbria
Police and others to consider crime and disorder reduction in the exercise of all their
duties. The reduction of crime and disorder is integral to this Council’s approach to
the Licensing Act.

Data protection

7 January 2016 8

Page 63




5.10 The Licensing Authority will process personal information in accordance with the

5.11

5.12

5.13

Data Protection Act 1998. The personal details provided by applicants will be held on
a database and where the law allows, may be shared with other departments within
the Council to update details they hold. The Licensing Authority may also be required
to disclose personal information to third parties (such as Police, Department for Work
and Pensions or Audit Commission for the National Fraud Initiative) for the purposes
of preventing or detecting crime or apprehending or prosecuting offenders.

Local Government Declaration on Alcohol

Gateshead Council has signed the Local Government Declaration on Alcohol, and
has committed to:

* Promoting the introduction of greater regulations around the price, promotion
and availability of alcohol

* Calling for changes to the Licensing Act in favour of local authorities and
communities, to enable greater control on the number, density and availability
of alcohol according to local requirements

* Putting public health and community safety at the forefront of public policy-
making about alcohol

* Making best use of existing licensing powers to ensure effective management
of the night-time economy; and

* Raising awareness of the harm caused by alcohol to individuals and our
communities.

It is recognised that the regime under the Licensing Act is only one part of the
framework needed to achieve these aims; that in terms of alcohol the Act only
regulates its sale and supply — not its consumption; and that the regime cannot be
utilised where the Council’s aims do not pertain to the objectives set out in the Act.

However the licensing regime has proven to be an effective tool in Gateshead for the
control of price, promotion and availability of alcohol:

Price

The sale / supply of cheap alcohol can lead to its over-consumption which in turn can
undermine the licensing objectives particularly in respect of the prevention of crime
and disorder and the protection of children from harm. This Licensing Authority has
imposed and will continue to impose minimum unit price requirements where
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives, and as part of a range of measures
to tackle identified concerns. For instance, alcohol can be ‘cheap’ not only due to its
price but also due to its strength. Where appropriate this Licensing Authority will also
impose conditions to control the sale of certain types of product, such as ‘super
strength’ ciders, spirits, etc.

Promotion

The Government has imposed certain mandatory conditions to prohibit irresponsible
drinks promotions where the consumption is intended to take place on the premises.
This Licensing Authority will impose further conditions on licences where it is
appropriate and proportionate to do so, which will depend on the individual
circumstances. For instance, conditions can be imposed to prevent promotions
which are aimed at young people particularly in the vicinity of schools and other
locations attended by children, and promotion of potentially dangerous alcoholic

7 January 2016 9

Page 64




5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

products such as cocktails containing liquid nitrogen. Gateshead Licensing
Authority’s expectations with respect to the promotion of alcohol in off licensed
premises are set out in 8.18 below.

Place

There are a range of measures that can assist in controlling the availability of alcohol
in defined localities where there is appropriate evidence to support the restriction.
These include:

e Cumulative impact policies
e Night time levy
e Early morning restriction orders

The evidential basis to consider implementing any of these measures in Gateshead
has not yet been put forward, however if evidence supports their implementation in
the future this will be duly considered.

Public Space Protection Orders

The following locations have been designated as alcohol exclusion areas:

Gateshead

at all of the Metro stations in the borough
Birtley

Whickham

Ryton

Winlaton

e o o o e @

This means that within the exclusion zones it is an offence to refuse to comply with
the reasonable request of a Police Constable or authorised officer to stop consuming
alcohol or to hand over alcohol for confiscation. Licensed premises (and their
curtilages) are excluded from the scope of the Orders while licensable activities are
authorised to take place.

Social Responsibility

The Portman Group has produced a code of practice on the naming, packaging and
promotion of alcoholic drinks. Licensees that sell or supply alcohol are expected to
have regard to the code of practice as amended from time to time.
http://www.portmangroup.org.uk/docs/default-source/code-of-

practice/7609 por02 code of practice final.pdf

Pubwatch

A Pubwatch scheme has been in existence in the Borough for some time. It is led by
Northumbria Police, and provides a forum for licensees to gain support from the
Police, the Council and other licensees to tackle the problems associated with
individuals who cause disturbance, disorder, use drugs or use or threaten violence
in and around licensed premises. By acting collectively in excluding such people from
a number of premises in the area, this means that the problem is not simply moved
from one pub to the next. Pubwatch schemes have been found to be effective tools

7 January 2016 10

Page 65




5.18

5.19

5.20

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

In tackling anti-social behaviour in many areas where the schemes are well run and
there is a significant level of participation by licence holders in the borough. The
Gateshead Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2013-2015 recognises the importance
of the Pubwatch scheme and envisages it being used to share and develop best
practice and as a forum for training.

Regional and national working

The Licensing Authority participates in regional working through the North East
Strategic Licensing Group, which is comprised of representatives of each of the
twelve North East Licensing Authorities, and forms part of the North East Public
Protection Partnership.

The Licensing Authority also works closely with Balance — the North East Alcohol
Office, to achieve an integrated approach across the region and with key partners
such as the Police.

From the national perspective, representatives of the Licensing Authority participate
in the Local Government Association’s Licensing Policy Forum, and the Licensing
Special Area of Activity for Lawyers in Local Government.

General Principles of the Policy

Each application will be determined on its merits having regard to this Policy,
Guidance under Section 182 of the Act, the Act itself and supporting Regulations.

The Licensing Authority considers:

* the effective and responsible management of premises
* instruction, training and supervision of staff; and
* the adoption of best practice

to be amongst the most important control measures for the achievement of all the
licensing objectives. For this reason, the Licensing Authority will expect these
elements to be specifically considered and addressed within an applicant’s operating
schedule.

Applicants who do not clearly demonstrate how they intend to address these issues
in their operating schedules should expect their applications to be objected to,
including by the Licensing Authority.

Also, licensees whose practice does not meet this expectation may have their licence
reviewed, and as above this may be triggered by the Licensing Authority itself.

Licensing Objectives

Applicants will need to provide evidence to the Licensing Authority that, in respect of
each of the four licensing objectives, suitable and sufficient measures, as detailed in

7 January 2016 11

Page 66




7.2

7.3

7.4

their Operating Schedule, will be implemented and maintained, and will be relevant
to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The Licensing Authority will expect to see evidence that the following specific matters
that impact on crime and disorder have been addressed in the Operating Schedule
of the premises:

e The capability of the person who is in charge to run the premises during
trading hours or when Regulated Entertainment is provided to effectively and
responsibly manage and supervise the premises, including associated open
areas

* The steps to be taken in the absence of the Designated Premises Supervisor
to effectively manage the business.

» The steps taken or to be taken to ensure that appropriate instruction, training
and supervision is given to those employed or engaged in the premises to
prevent incidents of crime and disorder

* The measures taken or to be taken to raise staff awareness and discourage
and prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs on the premises

* The features currently in place or planned for physical security at the
premises, such as lighting outside the premises

* The policies that have been determined in respect of adoption of appropriate
existing and future best practice guidance (eg Safer Clubbing, the National
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit, etc)

e Any arrangements which the licence holder proposes to work in partnership
with the Council, police and other traders in establishing a method of co-
ordinating closing times to prevent crowds emerging from premises at the
same time and to prevent migration between premises with different closing
times

e Any appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the prevention
of violence or public disorder

The extent to which the above matters need to be addressed will be dependent on
the individual style, characteristics and location of the premises, and proposed events
and activities. In general however, the Licensing Authority will expect more
comprehensive measures to be in place at late night entertainment venues or in
premises with a history of crime and disorder issues.

In such premises appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the
prevention of violence or public disorder may include:

¢ Provision of effective CCTV both within and around premises

7 January 2016 12

Page 67




Employment of SIA licensed door staff
Provision of toughened or plastic glasses
Procedures for risk assessing drinks promotions and events such as ‘happy

hours’ for the potential to cause crime and disorder and plans for minimising
such risks

7.5 The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to representations from the Police
in deciding whether the above issues have been adequately addressed. It will not
normally grant an application where representations indicate a potential negative
impact on crime and disorder, unless the applicant can demonstrate compelling
reasons why the application should be approved in the light of these concerns.

Public Safety

7.6 The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the impact
that the following factors may have on public safety:

The occupancy capacity of the premises

The age, design and layout of the premises, including means of escape in the
event of fire

The nature of the licensable activities to be provided, in particular the sale or
supply of alcohol, and/or the provision of music and dancing and including
whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent nature

The hours of operation (differentiating the hours of opening from the hours
when licensable activities are provided, if different)

Customer profile (eg age, disability)

The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines, etc

7.7 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may
need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

Suitable and sufficient risk assessments
Effective and responsible management of the premises

Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the
safety of the premises and patrons

Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to secure the safety of premises and patrons

Adoption of best practice guidance (eg Guide to Fire Precautions in Existing
Places of Entertainment and like premises, The Event Safety Guide, Safety in

7 January 2016 13

Page 68




Pubs published by the BBPA, and the Safety Guidance for Street Arts,
Carnival, Processions and Large Scale Performances published by
Independent Street Arts Network)

Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises

Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels

Implementation of crowd management measures

Proof of regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures,
appliances, systems etc pertinent to safety)

Prevention of Public Nuisance

7.8 The Licensing Authority interprets ‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense, and takes it
to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour, where
these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity
in an area.

7.9 The Licensing Authority will normally apply stricter conditions, including controls on
licensing hours, where licensed premises are in residential areas.

7.10  The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the impact
that the following factors may have on the potential for public nuisance:

The iocation of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive
premises

The hours of opening, particularly between 23:00 and 07:00 hours
The nature of activities to be provided, including whether those activities are
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or

outside premises

The design and layout of premises and in particular the presence of noise
limiting features

The occupancy capacity of the premises

The availability of public transport

‘wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and closure of
the premises, i.e. allowing patrons to remain in the premises for a period after

licensable activities have ceased, so that people do not disperse en masse

last admission time

7.11  The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may
need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

7 January 2016 14

Page 69




» effective and responsible management of the premises

* appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to prevent incidents of public nuisance eg to ensure customers leave
quietly

* operating hours for all or parts (eg garden areas) of premises, including such
matters as deliveries

* adoption of best practice guidance (eg Good Practice Guide on the Control of
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by the Institute of A.coustics, Licensed
Property: Noise, published by BBPA)

e installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound
limitation devices

* management of people, including staff, and traffic (and resulting queues)
* liaison with public transport providers

* siting of external lighting including security lighting

* management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter

e effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour

Protection of Children from Harm

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

The protection of children is an important issue and the licensing regime has a
fundamental role in achieving this. The protection of children from harm includes
moral, psychological and physical harm and applicants are expected to demonstrate
that such factors have been considered in their operating schedules.

Applicants should expect to receive objections in respect of the protection of children
from harm, and licensees should expect their licence to be reviewed, where:

* there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or the premises
have a reputation for facilitating underage drinking

* there is a known association with drug taking or dealing

¢ there is a strong element of gambling on the premises

* entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided

Licensees will be expected to prevent children from viewing films that are unsuitable
because of the age classification of the film that has been imposed by the British
Board of Film Classification or the Licensing Authority.

Anyone intending to provide staff for the supervision of activities for under 18s will be

expected to carry out enhanced criminal record checks on all such persons, and to
keep a register which should be available to the Police or authorised Council officer

7 January 2016 15

Page 70




7.16

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

on request. Applicants who do not put these measures in place should expect
objections to be made to their application.

Where applicants intend to provide any age restricted goods or services it is expected
that they will apply the same standards of age verification in respect of all age
restricted goods or services, that staff will be regularly trained, and that appropriate
records are kept of training and refusals.

Types of activity that may heighten concern as to the promotion of the
licensing objectives

It has been the experience of this Licensing Authority over the last ten years since
the Licensing Act came into force that there are certain types of licensable activity
that tend to require a greater degree of control or a particular emphasis on certain
control measures in order that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted.

Adult entertainment

The term ‘adult entertainment’ is not defined in the Licensing Act, but it is taken in
this policy to refer to activities and form of entertainment that may be unsuitable for
children to participate in or to observe. Common examples of adult entertainment
include striptease, lap dancing and other forms of dancing /entertainment with a
sexual content. Other types of activity may also be ‘adult entertainment’ such as the
showing of films that have been certified ‘18, total fighting, mixed martial arts, and
demonstrations and participation in activities containing elements of bondage,
discipline, domination, submission, sadism and/or masochism. This list is clearly not
exhaustive, and the Licensing Authority will consider each application on its merits.

Although adult entertainment is permitted by the Licensing Act, it is necessary that
licensees set out details of the activities they intend to take place in their operating
schedule, so that the Licensing Authority, responsible bodies and others may take
appropriate steps to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are not undermined. As
such it is important that applicants complete box ‘N’ of their application form, and
provide as much detail as possible regarding the nature of the proposed activities.

If applicants do not complete box ‘N’ it is the policy of this Licensing Authority to
impose a condition on the licence / certificate (if issued), consistent with the operating
schedule, that prohibits adult entertainment at the premises. If licensees / certificate
holders are then found to have provided adult entertainment in breach of this
condition, they may be prosecuted and/or the licence / certificate may be reviewed
which could lead to the imposition of further conditions, suspension or revocation.

Applicants and licence / certificate holders are advised to consider the nature of the
activities they wish to take place at their premises in line with the guidance notes to
box ‘N’ of the application form.

Sex-related entertainment

In 2010 Gateshead Council adopted Schedule 3 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 in respect of the regulation of sex entertainment
venues and implemented a policy regarding the regulation of these venues.

7 January 2016 16

Page 71




8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

Where the Licensing Authority is requested to classify a film for exhibition within the
Licensing Authority’s area, it will do so if the film has not been classified by the British
Board of Film Classification, or such classification is not pending.

When an applicant submits a film for classification, they should provide a copy of the
film to the Licensing Officer, and should indicate the rating that they consider
appropriate. The Licensing Officer shall consult with Northumbria Police and the
Local Safeguarding Children Board. The applicant should provide the copy of the film
at least 28 days in advance of the proposed screening. If the applicant is unable to
provide a copy of the film in DVD format or via a website then they should liaise with
the Licensing Officer to arrange for a screening of the film for the relevant bodies as
above.

The Licensing Authority shall have regard to any representations received from the
Local Safeguarding Children Board and Northumbria Police. The Licensing Authority
shall have regard to the classification standards applied by the British Board of Film

. Classification. The Licensing Authority shall also have regard to (but shall not be

bound by) any classification given to the film by another Licensing Authority.

Where a relevant representation is received, the classification of the film shall be
determined by a hearing of the Licensing Sub Committee.

Alcohol sales

It is expected that applicants will set out in their operating schedule the measures
they will take to ensure that a written record is kept of all the names and addresses
of persons who are authorised to sell or supply alcchol at all times, and that the
written record is made available to Police and/or Council officers immediately upon
request.

It is expected that premises licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the
premises will adopt responsible marketing practices and concern may be heightened
where alcohol is promoted in such a way as to encourage people to drink more than
they would ordinarily do and in a manner that doesn’t promote the licensing
objectives, for example quantity based discount promotions and display and
promotion of alcohol products in multiple positions in a premises.

It is expected that applicants who intend to sell or supply alcohol by delivery or
collection of prepaid orders will include provision in their operating schedules to set
out how they will ensure that they do not:

® serve alcohol to a person who appears to be drunk

e serve alcohol to a person who it is believed will pass it on to persons under 18
years old

* take payment for the alcohol at the place where it is served — sales should be
pre-paid only

It is also expected that applicants will:

* operate an age verification policy of at least a Challenge 25 standard

7 January 2016 18

Page 72




8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

* only deliver to residential addresses
* only stock delivery vehicles with aicohol that has been pre-ordered

e verify that the person that the alcohol is served to is the person who has
ordered it

* only make sales where the purchase price is at least £25 and/or the minimum
unit price of the alcohol is not less than £1 per unit

Petrol stations / garages

The Licensing Act prohibits the sale or supply of alcohol from premises used primarily
as garages. The Section 182 guidance states that premises are used primarily as a
garage if they are used for one or more of the following:

the retailing of petrol

the retailing of derv

the sale of motor vehicles; and
the maintenance of motor vehicles

It is expected that applicants for premises licences for premises where any of these
activities take place will set out in their operating schedule that they will submit sales
data on at least a six monthly basis showing:

the number of purchases of fuel alone

the number of purchases of fuel and other goods
the number of purchases of other goods alone, and
turnover for each of these type of purchases.

Takeaways

The Licensing Authority will generally not permit the sale of alcohol from ‘takeaway’
premises that are licensed for late night refreshment, due to the inherent potential for
late night alcohol fuelled crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour and the difficulties
of addressing such behaviour where the consumption of the alcohol and associated
behaviour takes place away from the premises themselves, often in residential areas.
Applicants seeking approval to sell alcohol from ‘takeaway’ premises will need to
clearly demonstrate how they will ensure that their activities will not lead to such
problems.

Outside areas

Where premises include an outside area it is expected that the operating schedule
will set out how the applicant will address:

* The provision of appropriate bins and other receptacles for litter generated by
patrons

7 January 2016 19

Page 73




9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.

° Whether there will be any increase in the cumulative adverse impact from
these or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area

In the case of shops, stores and supermarkets selling alcohol, the Licensing Authority
will normally expect the hours during which alcohol is sold to match the normal trading
hours during which other sales take place, in order to reduce the potential for
disturbance or disorder.

Operating Schedules

Operating schedules should set out the licensable activities that are intended to be
carried out and how it is intended that this happens. Operating schedules should be
sufficiently detailed and clear for interested parties and responsible authorities to
understand how the applicant or licensee will promote the licensing objectives.
When considering the promotion of the licensing objectives, applicants and licensees
should have due regard to the context of the locality that they seek to operate in, and
be mindful of any particular concerns that relate to that locality.

For instance, applicants and licensees are expected to have regard to any Local
Licensing Guidance in respect of the locality they propose to serve.

Applicants are expected to ensure that their operating schedule enables the
Licensing Authority, responsible authorities and interested parties to understand:

¢ What licensable activities are intended to be carried out

* When licensable activities will be carried out — i.e. between what hours, on
what days and at what times of year

* When the premises will be open to the public for non-licensed activities

* Whether alcohol is intended to be sold for consumption off the premises
(including where it will be delivered to customers)

* (Where the sale or supply of alcohol is intended at premises with a Premises
Licence) who the Designated Premises Supervisor will be and what his / her
address is

* What steps will be taken to promote the Licensing Objectives.

It is recommended that applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
operating schedules to discuss any relevant concerns.

Designated Premises Supervisor
Designated Premises Supervisors have an important role to play in ensuring that the

measures to promote the licensing objectives that are set out in an operating
schedule are put into practice on a day to day basis.

7 January 2016 21

Page 74




12.

12.1

12.2

Where there is a requirement for premises to have a Designated Premises
Supervisor, it is expected that the person will be a key person related to the premises,
so that matters arising can be dealt with as quickly as possible.

It is expected that a Designated Premises Supervisor will have day to day
responsibility for running the premises and will be present at the premises at least
50% of the time in a seven day week that the premises are open for the carrying on
of licensable activities.

Where the Designated Premises Supervisor is not available at the premises for
whatever reason, the Licensing Authority will expect an individual to be nominated
as a point of contact who will have details of where the Designated Premises
Supervisor can be contacted.

Where there are problems associated with the running of a premises that stem from
the DPS’s performance of that role, they may be removed from the role by the
Licensing Sub-Committee.

Conditions

Whilst the Licensing Act sets out the regulatory framework that applies to all
licensees, conditions can be added to individual licences to prescribe how the
licensable activities are to be carried out having regard to all the relevant individual
circumstances.

There are three types of condition:

* mandatory conditions imposed by the Secretary of State — applicants and
licensees are expected to comply with the relevant mandatory conditions
that apply to the activities they carry out, and to be aware that these
mandatory conditions change from time to time. The Home Office issued
guidance in respect of these mandatory conditions in October 2014:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment
data/file/350507/2014-08-29 MC Guidance v1 0.pdf.

* conditions imposed voluntarily by the applicant / licensee — these
conditions will be consistent with the applicant / licensee’s operating
schedule, although the wording may be amended to ensure clarity and
enforceability. Applicants and licensees should note that in line with this
Policy, in certain cases the Licensing Authority will assume unless
informed otherwise that applicants are volunteeting conditions. For
instance, as above where an applicant does not indicate an intention to
provide adult entertainment by ticking box ‘N’ on their application form, it
will be assumed that they are volunteering a condition not to provide aduit
entertainment at the premises; and

e conditions imposed at a hearing — the Licensing Sub-Committee may
impose conditions on a licence where it considers it appropriate to do so.
Any such conditions will be appropriate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and proportionate to the problems that the Sub-Committee find
in relation to the premises.

7 January 2016 22

Page 75




12.3

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

The Licensing Authority does not impose ‘standard’ conditions on licences, but there
are certain factors that most premises that carry out certain licensable activities
should take into account. A pool of model conditions is set out in Appendix 1, which
applicants should consider when preparing their operating schedule.

When things go wrong

Complaints about licensed premises

The Licensing Authority will investigate complaints about both licensed premises
where licensable activities are taking place but not in accordance with the relevant
authorisation; and unlicensed premises where licensable activities are taking place
without authorisation.

Complainants will usually, in the first instance, be encouraged to raise the complaint
directly with the licensee or business concerned, as this can often be the quickest
and most effective way for the person carrying on the licensable activity to understand
the negative impact of the activity.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority will initially endeavour to seek a
resolution through informal means.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority may pass any complaint on for
investigation by any other statutory agency under whose enforcement responsibility
the complaint falls.

Failing to comply with the Licensing Act

The Council delivers a wide range of enforcement services, aimed at safeguarding
the environment and the community and at providing a ‘level playing field’ on which
businesses can fairly trade. The administration and enforcement of the licensing
regime is one of these services. The BRDO has published a Regulators’ Code, which
the Council complies with:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/requlators-code

The Council will base its enforcement activities around the principles of consistency,
transparency and proportionality.

The enforcement policy proposes that a graduated response is taken where offences
against licensing legislation are found or where licence conditions have been
contravened. An isolated administrative offence may be dealt with for example by
way of a written warning whilst more serious offences which have either been
committed over a period of time or which jeopardise public safety may result in a
referral for prosecution.

The Council will seek to work actively with the Police, Fire & Rescue Service, Trading
Standards and any other relevant authority to enforce the licensing legislation. This
may include carrying out test purchases, inspections of licensed premises,
investigating complaints about licensed premises and investigating allegations of
unlicensed premises. Such a partnership approach is intended to prevent duplication

7 January 2016 23

Page 76




of effort, maximise the potential for controlling crime and disorder at premises and to
ensure compliance when relevant conditions are appropriate. Gateshead Council
has approved the Northumbria Police Joint Enforcement Protocol, which will
encourage a consistent approach to enforcement throughout the Licensing
Authorities within the Northumbria Police area.

13.8 Inspections will take place at the discretion of the Council and its partner agencies
and will be concentrated on areas of need. A light touch inspection regime will be
employed for well managed and maintained premises with a targeted and graduated
inspection and enforcement regime for problem and high-risk premises.

13.9 Where possible and appropriate, the Licensing Authority and its partner agencies will
give early warning to licence holders of any concerns about problems occurring at
premises associated with the licensing objectives

13.10 The Licensing Authority will carry out its responsibilities for enforcement so as to
promote the licensing objectives.

Reviews

13.11 Interested parties and responsible authorities may seek a review of a premises
licence or club premises certificate if they believe that the current operation under the
licence or certificate is harmful to one or more of the Licensing Objectives.

13.12 Where an application to review a licence or certificate is received by the Licensing
Authority, it should be accompanied by any relevant supporting information,
documentation, etc. If the application is relevant, and (if made by an interested party)
is not frivolous, vexatious or repetitive, a hearing before the Licensing Authority’s Sub
Committee will be held. Where appropriate the parties may be able to hold
discussions with a view to reaching an agreement on steps that can be taken to
improve the position.

13.13 When a hearing before the Sub Committee takes place, the Sub Committee will
consider all relevant information presented to it, and decide what course of action is
appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. There are a range of
responses that are open to the Sub Committee on a review application. The Sub
Committee may —

Take no further action

Add or modify conditions on the licence or certificate

Exclude a licensable activity from the licence or certificate

Remove the designated premises supervisor

Suspend the licence or certificate for a period not exceeding three months
Revoke the licence or certificate.

13.14 The review process is intended to enable the Licensing Authority to take appropriate
timely measures to promote the Licensing Objectives in respect of individual
premises. A review can take place even if it would be disproportionate to revoke a
licence or certificate, as some lesser measure can be taken, as above.

13.15 Also, because the review process is intended to address the future conduct of the
licence holder, a review can take place regardless of any other measures that may

7 January 2016 24

Page 77




be open to the interested party or responsible body. For instance, if a licence holder
is found to have sold age restricted products to a minor, it is not necessary for a
prosecution (or indeed a successful prosecution) to take place in respect of that sale
before a review is brought, as the review would consider the steps appropriate to
prevent future underage sales.

Summary reviews

13.16 The Police may request a summary review in serious cases of crime and disorder,

and in which case within 48 hours of the application the Licensing Authority will
consider whether any interim steps are required pending completion of the review
process. This may include immediate suspension of the relevant licence.

14. Delegation and Decision Making

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

The Council has established a Licensing Committee to administer its functions under
the Licensing Act 2003. Powers and functions have also been delegated to Licensing
Sub-Committees and officers in order to provide a speedy, efficient and cost effective
service to all parties involved in the licensing process.

Many of the decisions and functions are largely administrative in nature such as the
grant of non-contentious applications, including for example those licences and
certificates where no representations have been made. These will be delegated to
Council officers. All such matters dealt with by officers will be reported for information
to the next Licensing Committee meeting.

Applications where there are relevant representations will be dealt with by the
Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee — unless such representations are considered
irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious or unless the Licensing Authority, the applicant and
everyone who has made representations agrees that a hearing is not necessary
(usually after successful mediation).

The table given below sets out the delegation of decisions and functions of the
Licensing Committee, Sub-Committees and officers. The various delegations include
delegation to impose appropriate conditions.

This scheme of delegations is without prejudice to the right of relevant parties to refer
an application to a Licensing Sub-Committee or the full Licensing Committee if
considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case.

Unless there are compelling reasons to the contrary, the Licensing Authority will
require the Licensing Committee or any of its sub-committees to meet in public —
although Members can retire into private session to consider their decision. A public
announcement of the decision will be made at the end of the hearing together with
clear, cogent reasons for the decision having due regard to the Human Rights Act
1998, the four licensing objectives and all other legislation.

The Licensing Committee will be made up of 15 members and Sub-Committees of

three who will hear any relevant representations from authorised persons,
responsible authorities and interested parties in the form of a hearing.

7 lanuary 2016 25

Page 78




14.8 Where a function is delegated to an officer, that officer will be responsible for liaising
between the applicant, interested parties and the responsible authorities to ensure
that any licence granted is subject to the appropriate conditions. Where objections
are made then the officer will once again liaise with the applicant, interested parties
and the responsible authorities to see if a ‘settlement’ is possible to overcome the
objections without the need for the matter to go before the Sub-Committee.

14.9

The Sub-Committee will determine each case before it on its individual merits.
However, in determining the application the Sub-Committee will consider:

14.10 Delegation of functions:

The case and evidence presented by all parties
The promotion of the four licensing objectives
Guidance issued by Central Government

The Licensing Authority's own statement of Licensing Policy

/ updated Local

Matter to be Full Sub-Committee Officers
dealt with Committee
Consideration | Six monthly
of reports to the
committee
Approval of new | Six monthly

Licensing
Guidance
Application for If representation is If no representation
personal licence made made
Application for All cases
Personal
Licence with
unspent
convictions
Application for If a relevant If no relevant
Premises representation made representation is
Licence / Club made
Premises
Certificate
Application for a If a relevant If no relevant
Provisional representation made representation is
Statement made

Application to

vary Premises

Licence / Club
Premises
Certificate

If a relevant
representation made

If no relevant
representation is
made

Application to
vary Designated
Premises
Supervisor

If a Police objection

All other cases

Page 79

7 January 2016 26




Request to be
removed as
Designated

Premises
Supervisor

All cases

Application for
transfer of
premises
licence

If a Police objection

All other cases

Application for
interim
authorities

If a police Objection

All other cases

Application to
review
Premises
Licence / Club
Premises
Certificate

All cases

Decision on
whether a
complaint is
irrelevant
frivolous
vexatious etc

All cases

Decision to
make
representation
on behalf of
Licensing
Authority

All cases

Determination
of objection to a
Temporary
Event Notice

All cases

Classification of
films for
exhibition where
BBFC has not

classified

If a relevant
representation made

If no relevant
representation is
made

15. Consultation and Review
15.1  This Policy will come into effect on 7 January 2016 and will remain in force for not

more than five years. During that time it will be subject to periodic reviews and further
consultation.

7 January 2016 27

Page 80




Home Office

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2018

Page 81




s

Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003

1.1

The Licensing Act 2003 (referred to in this Guidance as the 2003 Act), its explanatory
notes and any statutory instruments made under it may be viewed online at
www.legislation.qov.uk. The statutory instruments include regulations setting out the

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

The licensing objectives are:

* The prevention of crime and disorder;
* Public safety;

* The prevention of public nuisance; and
* The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
o that the promotion of the four objectives is a Paramount consideration at all times.

However, the legislation also Supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work. They include:

* protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

causing problems;

* recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and Supporting responsible premises;

* providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

* encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

Page 82

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 1




The guidance

1.6 Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised
guidance.

Purpose

1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their
functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and
proportionality.

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

1.9 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

1.10  Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

Page 83

2 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




Licensing policies

1.11

1.12

Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when taking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give full reasons for departing
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

Licensable activities

1.13

For the purposes of the 2003 Act, the following are licensable activities:

* The sale by retail of alcohol:

* The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the
club;

* The provision of regulated entertainment: and
* The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Authorisations or permissions

1.14

The 2003 Act provides for four different types of authorisation or permission, as follows:

* Premises licence — to use premises for licensable activities.

* Club premises certificate — to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club
activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act.

* Temporary event notice — to carry out licensable activities at a temporary event.

* Personal licence — to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence.

General principles

1.15

If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other
persons, the licensing authority must grant the application, subject only to conditions
that are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. it is
recommended that licence applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
their operating schedules.

Page 84

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 3




Licence conditions — general principles

1.16

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can iawfully operate. The use of wording such as
“must”, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions:

L]

must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;

must be precise and enforceable;

must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;

should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities
placed on the employer by other legislation;

must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises
and events concerned,

should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual

case;
should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;
should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;

cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct
management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and

should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.17

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application fails

within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and

certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need

for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be

unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Additional guidance

From time to time, the Home Office may issue additional supporting guidance to
licensing authorities and other persons on the Gov.uk website. This supporting guidance
is good practice guidance and should be viewed as indicative and subject to change.
Such supporting guidance will broadly reflect but will not be part of the statutory
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the 2003 Act. Licensing
authorities may wish to refer to, but are under no statutory duty to have regard to such
supporting guidance issued by the Home Office.

1.18

Page 85

4 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




Other relevant legislation

1.19

While licence conditions should not duplicate other statutory provisions, licensing
authorities and licensees should be mindful of requirements and responsibilities placed
on them by other legisiation. Legislation which may be relevant includes:

The Gambling Act 2005

The Environmental Protection Act 1990

The Noise Act 1996

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Equality Act 2010

The immigration Act 2016

Regulators’ Cede under the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006

Page 86

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 5




2.

The licensing objectives

Crime and disorder

21

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership
(CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers.
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on
the premises.

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency
could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

Page 87

6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




—

2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to
undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.

Public safety

2.7

2.8

29

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be
the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers
(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

 Fire safety;

 Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;

* Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for exampie
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

* Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;

* Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

* Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

* Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

* Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they
achieve that.

Page 88
Revised Guidancg issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 7




Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

2.10

Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their
premises. Measures that may assist include:

+ Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

» Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and
from the premises and in car parks.

Maintenance and repair

2.1

Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for
employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain
equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition
to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require
as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be
conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the
premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a
requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing
authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any
other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to
be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities — such as health and safety
authorities — should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable
prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club
operating schedules.

Safe capacities

212

213

“Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public
safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity
has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in
a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict
with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through
other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity
to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the
licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For
example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing
disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated
and hostile.

The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises
at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises
licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity
where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section
177 of the 2003 Act', the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the
appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire
and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of

' S 177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to peﬁormanﬁéag@ngg
8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




) 214
2.15
2.16
217
2.18

) 219

)

)

those premises should be.

Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does
not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling
entertainment.

Public nuisance

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the

e 90

Pa
Revised Guidange issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 9




2.20

2.21

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby o @ peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm

2.22

2.23

2.24

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure fo certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered
in circumstances where:

. adult entertainment is provided,;

. a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);

« it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

. there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or

. in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a caf¢
bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a
sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amount
to entertainment or services op%[gqg@tfr sexual nature. Applicants, responsible

10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would
broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism,
or entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification,
other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:

* restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

* restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place:

* restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

* age restrictions (below 18);

* restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

* requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

* full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are
taking place.

Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to
the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in
persons-aged-under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively.

The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate

Pac%e 92

Revised Guidancg issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 11




ﬁ

2.31

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to fiims to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has
been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a
premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any

emergency.

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children

2.32

Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young
offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases unde;
section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of
alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or
prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities,
alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences,
except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children).
Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to
prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms
should be aware of the warnings each of them has given.

Page 93

12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




Table of relevant offences under the 2003 Act

Section Offence Prosecuting Authority
Section 145 Unaccompanied children prohibited from | Police and/or Licensing Authority
certain premises
Section 146 Sale of alcohol to children Police, Licensing Authority and/or
Local Weights and Measures
Authority
Section 147 Allowing the sale of alcohol to children Police, Licensing Authority and/or
Local Weights and Measures
Authority
Section 147A | Persistently selling alcohol to children Police and/or Local Weights and
Measures Authority
Section 149 Purchase of alcohol by or on behalf of Police and/or Licensing Authority
children
Section 150 Consumption of alcohol by children Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 151 Delivering alcohol to children Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 152 Sending a child to obtain alcohol Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 153 Prohibition of unsupervised sales by Police and/or Licensing Authority
children

Page 94
Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003113




V UV v e

v

P PP UUUVDUDUUUVDUUVUDUVUVUUVUUVYUUUUVUDUUUYUUYUUYU U

11.

Reviews

The review process

11.1

11.2

1.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises
licence or club premises certificate.

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any
of the four licensing objectives.

An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if
the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance
that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are
outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK
or the licensing authority’s electronic facility.

In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it
relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the
basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.

Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises
licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply
for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene
early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected
that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for
reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These
individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their
own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to
expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls
within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate
steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual
exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the
area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review.

- Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies

for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved in this
process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined
previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing
authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should
achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to
9.19 of this Guidance.

Revised Guidgnggsesu%c? under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 89




1.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect
of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to
the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation
of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating
to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town
centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be
positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow
for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of
complaints, including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its
closing time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct
incidents of crime and disorder around a particular public house.

Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the authority
may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of licensed
premises within the area concerned. in such circumstances, the authority may also
consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating to
cumulative impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative
impact policies can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.

Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent
hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount
to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing.
Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees
and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives
this requirement.

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning
of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise
the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a
decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing
objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-
operation.

If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible
authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade
association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the
complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance
on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in
Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).

Repetitious grounds of review

11.12

A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:
« a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or

- representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or
certificate was granted; or

+ representations which would have geen made when the application for the premises
age %

90 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




>
>
2
2 1113
D
D
b

11.14

11.15

2
b
bo)
b
b
>
o
pu
J
2
)
5
2
3
3
3
3
S
3
o}
-
-

11.16

11.17

11.18
3
3110
=

!
3

licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

Licenéing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order.

The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These
regulations are published on the Government's legislation website
(www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative
has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued in writing to the licence holder.

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in,writing
— that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account
when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

Revised Guidaﬁc@'g%e%aner section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 91




11.20

11.21

11.22

11.23

- modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

. exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the
incidental live and recorded music exemption)'®;

. remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that
the problems are the result of poor management;

- suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

revoke the licence.

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be
an inadequate response to the problems presented. indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.

Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise
to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough
action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

10 5ee chapter 15 in relation to the licensing of Iivel&@g@r@@music.
92 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24

11.25

11.26

11.27

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter
for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not
therefore to estabilish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them.

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives
and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not
those of the individual licence holder.

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:

+ for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;
+ for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms:

* for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected:

» for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;

« for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

* by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

* as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

Revised Guidaﬁ:@'gs%eggnder section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 93




11.28

. for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

« for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

« for unlawful gambling; and
. for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and aicohol.

It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal
working compliance order

11.29

Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the
review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance order under
section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run
concurrently and are as follows:

« when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review — the determination must
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is
received;

. the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;

« notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the nofice
and the start of the hearing).

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol
to children

11.29

The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly
and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at
the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme).
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

Page 100

94 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003




Not Set

Not Set

idox

One company: Infinite possibilities

\ B v

[&
%
> z
K
%

"

153.3

\"EO

9 W K 5

-

't
<
()}
%d‘
S

Legend 0 0.005 0.01

or civil proceedings.

Scale: mmw—— w—— K\

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution

0.02

Organisation Gateshead Council

Department Development and Public Protection
Comments Not Set

Date 29/07/2022

MSA Number SLA

i)

age 101




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

A Coune o S T
Council

TITLE OF REPORT: Application to vary a premises licence to nominate an
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor:
168-170 Sheriffs Highway, Gateshead, NE9 5SD

REPORT OF: Strategic Director; Economy Innovation and Growth:
Licensing Officer

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider an application from Mr Farhad Jamnejad to
vary the premises licence for 168-170 Sheriffs Highway, Gateshead, NE9 5SD to
nominate himself as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS).

The application has been brought before the Sub-committee due a representation
/objection made by Northumbria Police.

2. BACKGROUND

On 12 October 2018 a premises licence was granted for 168-170 Sheriff Highway,
Gateshead, NE9 5SD following an application from Mr Farhad Jamnejad. Mr
Jamnejad applied to be the premises licence holder and the Designated Premises
Supervisor (DPS)

On 2 August 2019 an application to vary the premises licence to nominate Amer Idris
Paul as the DPS was submitted. Northumbria Police did not object and the
application was therefore granted.

As a result of a premises licence inspection by Licensing on the 13 June 2022 it was
discovered that Mr Paul no longer worked at the premises. Mr Jamnejad was given
advice and later that day he submitted an application to nominate himself as the
DPS. Northumbria Police objected to the application.

Mr Jamnejad has recently advised Licensing that the premises address is 170 Sheriff
Highway with 168 Sheriff Highway being residential accommodation. The premises
is known as Sheriff Highway Stores.

The Application

The application submitted by Mr Farhad Jamnejad (‘Applicant’) to nominate himself
as the DPS for 168-170 Sheriff Highway, Gateshead, NE9 5SD is attached as
Appendix 1.

Representation

Page 103



2
Northumbria Police objected to the application on the grounds the licensing objective

of the prevention of crime and disorder would be undermined. The objection is
attached as Appendix 2.
Parties
The Parties to the hearing will be:
a) The Applicant, Mr Farhad Jamnejad
b) Northumbria Police.
3. FOR CONSIDERATION
The areas for consideration by the Sub-Committee are:
. The vary DPS application; and
. The representation.
4, THE POLICY
When carrying out its functions the Sub-Committee must have regard to:
(a) the Statement of Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy,
(b) the Licensing Act 2003
(c) the Amended Guidance (April 2018) issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 by the Secretary of State.
Some parts of the Policy and Amended Guidance are reproduced in Appendices 3
and 4. The parties may refer to the policy and guidance during the hearing.

5. FOR DECISION

The Licensing Authority may, having regard to the application, take the following
steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

e Grant the application; or
e Refuse the application.

Page 104



Appendix

Appendix
Appendix

Appendix

APPENDICES
Application to vary the Premises Licence to nominate an
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor
Representation from Northumbria Police
Relevant Extracts from Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy

Relevant Extracts from the Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



I

Applicaionto vary a re mses licence to specfy anind vi dua as designated
prenmises supervisor under the Li censi ng Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOW NGI NSTRUCTI ONS A RST

Bef are conpl dingthisfor mp ease readthe gu dance nates a the end o thefam
If you are conp eingthsfa mby hand d ease witeleg dyinHock cadtds. Indl

cases ensuretha you answers areing dethe boxes and wittenin Hackink Use
addtiond sheetsif necessary.

You may wshtokeep acopy o the conpl e edfor mfar your recards.

1/ ve fahadjamg ad

(ful name(s) o premses licence had der)

bei ngthe prenises licence hd der, apd yto vary a pre mses li cence to spedcify
theind vidud namedinthlis appication as the pre mses supervisor under
section 37 o the Licensi ng Act 2003

Pre ni ses licence nunber

~ 00ch04511

|

Part 1- Prenises detdls

Postd address & premises a, if none, ardnance survey map reference or
descri pti on
170 sheriffs Hghway ne85sd

Post town Post code (if known)

ga eshead Ne95sd

“Tel ephone nunber (if any)

Descrition o prenises ( ease read gu dance nae 1)
sheriffs h ghvay stores

Page 107

[Formatted:

Tab




Part 2

Ful nanme o proposed desi gnated prenises superv sar
farhadjamg ad
Nati onality

M ace of hirth

Date o Hrth

Personal licence hunber d proposed des gnated premses supervi sor and
issu ng aut hority o that li cence (if any)
nccood 3413

Fdl nane o ex sti ng desi gnated pre m ses supervi sor (if any)
aner

Pl ease tick yes

| wod dliketh s apdicaionto havei mred & e dfect under =]
sedion 38 o the Licensing Adt 2003

| have end osed the prenises licence o rd evart pat d it ]

(If you have ndt end osed the prenmiseslicence, or rd evant pat o it, g ease gve
reasons why na)

Reasons why | have fdledto end ose the premi ses licence o rd evant part o it

A ease tick yes

» | have made or end osed pay ment o thefee O

« | vill gve acopy d ths gpdicdiontothe cH & dficer d pdice O

= | have end osedthe consent fa mconpl eé ed by the proposed premses O
supervi sar

» | have end osedthe premi seslicence, o rdevant pat d it a exdandion [ ]

= | vill gve acopy d thsfor mtothe ex ging premses supervi sar, if any O

= | understandtha if | do nd conpy withthe above requrenents ny O

appicaion vl bergeded

Page 108




IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT
2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE
LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT
1971] FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED
FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE
WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL
PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND
NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND, PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN
THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT
THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 3- Sgnatures (pease read gu dance nde 2

Signatwe o apdicant or apdicant’s sdidtor or ather duy aut hori sed agent
(See gui dance nat e 3). If s gni ng on behdf o the appicant dease staein what
capadity.

Forjdnt apdicants signatwe o 2 appicant 2" apgicant’s sdidtar o o her
aut hori sed agent ({ ease read gu dance nd e 4). If s gning on behaf d the
applicant dease staein what capadty.

Contact nanme (where not previously g ven) and postd address for
correspondence associaed withth s apdicaion ({d ease read gu dance nd ¢ 5)

Post town Post Code

Tel ephone nunber (if any)

If you wou d prefer us to correspond wth you by e- nail your e nail address
( opti ond)

Page 109




Page 110



Gu dance nd es

1. Describethe premses. For exanp ethetype d penisesitis
The apdicdionfa m must be d gned

3 An apdicart’s agernt (fa exanpl e sdidta) may sgnthefa monthear behaf
prov dedtha they have actud auhoityto do sa

4 Wherethereis norethan one apdicart, bath apgicarts o thdr respecti ve
agerts must sgnthe apdicdionfam

5 Thisisthe address which we shdl useto carespond wth you abou ths
apdicdion

Page 111



Consent o ind vi dud to bei ng specified as pre nises supervisor

farhadjamg ad

[ful nanme o prospedive prenises superv saj

hereby corfirmthat | gve ny consent to be spedfied as the ded gnated premses
supervisarinrddiontothe apdicaionfa

farhadjamg ad

00ch04511
rddingtoapemseslicence
[nunmber o ex &inglicence if any]
far

170 sheriffs Hghway sheriffs H gh way stores

1
Page 112



and any preniseslicenceto be granted or variedi nresped o th s apdicaion made
by

fahadjarmne ad

[name o appican]

concerringthe supdy o d cohd &
170 sheriffs hghway sheriffs H ghway st ae

[nane and address o prenises to wh ch apdicalionrd & es/

| dsocorfirmtha | amentitledto workinthe United K ngdomand amapgyingfor,
itendto apdyfa o curertly hdd a persond licence detals of which| se ou
bd ow
Persond licence nunber

nccood 3413

[insert personad licence number, if any]

Persond licenceissu ng aut hority

newcastl e aty coundl e

g gned

Far had j armej ad
Na e (d ease print) far had
Dat e 13 06.2022

2
Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



& poLice

Northumbria Police Licensing
Central Area Command (Gateshead)
licensing@northumbria.pnn.police uk

Date: 24/06/2022

OBJECTION NOTICE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

Forwarded to : licensing@gateshead.gov.uk,

Rebeccasparrow@pateshead.gov.uk

TO VARY TE PREMISES LICENCE TO SPECIFY AN INDIVIDUAL AS
DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR

Premises: Sheriffs Highway Stores, 168 Sheriffs Highway, Sheriff Hill, Gateshead, NE9 55D

Applicant: Farhad Jamnejad
Proposed DPS:  Farhad Jamnejad
Previous DPS: Amer Idris Paul

Northumbria Police, hereby give an objection notice to the appointment of the proposed new Designated
Premises Supervisor at Sheriffs Highway Stores, 168 Sheriffs Highway, Sheriff Hill, Gateshead, NE9 5SD.

On the 13™ June 2022 the current premises licence holder Farhad JAMNEJAD appointed himself as the
designated premises supervisor.

We are concerned that the licensing objectives of ' the prevention of crime and disorder and the protection of
children from harm will continue being undermined, should the current premises licence holder carry out the
duties and responsibilities of a designated premises supervisor.

On the 23" June 2022 an application to review the premises licence at 168-170 Sheriffs Highway, Sheriff Hill,
Gateshead, NE9 55D was lodged by Gateshead Council — Local Weights and Measures Authority.

The review was brought as a result of a test purchase exercise carried out at the premises on 24th February
2022, when a 15 year old child volunteer was sold a bottle of Desperados Beer without being prompted to
show acceptable form of ID.

Furthermore, the licence review reveals not only the poor management, but also offences committed under
the Licensing Act 2003, breaches of authorisation under the premises licence and other offences committed at
the premises whilst under the control of the current premises licence holder and designated premises
supervisor Farhad JAMNEJAD.

Northumbria Police are in support of the premises licence review due to the systemic failures identified at
these premises and the lack of confidence in the operator’s ability to promote the licensing objectives.

Pp

Police licensing

Dave Wheeler

Chief Inspector 7423
Central Area Command
Northumbria Police

licensing@northumbria.police.uk " http://www.northumbria.police.uk

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



f= Gateshead
Hi Coz{/ty‘l,_.,-ﬁ—.-——

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
Licensing Act 2003
7 January 2021 - 6 January 2026

Page 117 7 January 2016 1



1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Foreword by Councillor John McElroy

The Licensing Act has been in force now for ten years, and has contributed to a
significant change in how licensable activities are carried on in the Borough.

In Gateshead, both the licensed trade and its patrons are, on the whole,
responsible and sensitive to the needs of the communities in which licensed
activities take place.

However, the trend away from drinking in pubs and clubs to consumption of alcohol
at home presents a different set of challenges in terms of minimizing the harms that
can arise.

There has been an increase in the availability and accessibility of alcohol, and a
broadening of the type of premises where it is made available. Consequently, there
is now an increased role for the licensing regime to play in safeguarding the most
vulnerable members of our society.

The licensing regime is not only about the sale and supply of alcohol — the
provision of regulated entertainment and late night refreshment equally present
challenges to ensure that crime, disorder and public nuisance are prevented, public
safety is promoted and children are protected from harm.

There is no single answer to the challenges we will face in the coming months and
years; but the licensing regime is key to giving residents and responsible authorities
an opportunity to have their say on important matters that can impact their
community, and | would encourage everyone to utilise it to its fullest potential.

Strategic Context

The Council's overall vision for Gateshead, as described in Gateshead Strategic
Partnership’s Community Strategy — Vision 2030 and the Council's Corporate Plan
is:

“Local people realising their full potential, enjoying the best quality of life in a
healthy, equal, safe, prosperous and sustainable Gateshead”

The licensing of premises plays an important role in realising this vision,
contributing significantly to the Economy, Environment, and Health areas contained
within Priority 1 of the Corporate Plan, in providing safe and accessible venues that
promote healthy lifestyles and contribute to economy of the Borough.

This Policy sets out what this Licensing Authority expects of the people that it
authorises to carry out licensable activities in the Borough of Gateshead.

Applicants and licensees are of course expected to be familiar with the relevant
legislation and the National Guidance issued by the Home Office, but they are also
expected to be familiar with the exigencies of the locality that they operate in. This
applies to everyone seeking to carry on licensable activities in the Borough,
whether they are a large national chain or a small community premises.

Page 118 7 January 2016 3



2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The promotion of the licensing objectives underpins every decision that the
Licensing Authority makes. How the objectives are best promoted can vary from
place to place, and depending on the nature and scale of the activities that are to
be carried out. This Policy sets out the issues that are of particular relevance or
concern within Gateshead, and the approaches that this Licensing Authority would
expect responsible licensees to take into account in their operation.

The Policy links closely with a number of key plans and strategies produced by the
Council and its partners, as set out below in the section headed ‘Integration with
other legislation, policies and guidance’.

Local context

Gateshead is located on the southern bank of the river Tyne, opposite Newcastle
upon Tyne to the north, and bordering County Durham to the south, Northumberland
to the west and South Tyneside/Sunderland to the east. It is a constantly changing
borough combining modern facilities with a fascinating heritage. The borough
stretches almost 13 miles along the south bank of the river Tyne and covers 55
square miles, making it the largest of the five Tyne and Wear authorities.

Gateshead is a borough of contrasts. It has a large urban hub centred around the
main town centre area in Bridges ward and has a number of smaller urban centres
and busy employment areas such as Blaydon, Whickham, Felling and Birtley.
However, around two thirds of the borough is rural with numerous small settlements
such as Kibblesworth, Sunniside, Chopwell and High Spen.

Built on traditional industries of mining and heavy engineering, the 1930’s saw
diversification through the development of the Team Valley Trading Estate (TVTE),
the first trading estate of its type in the UK. Centrally located for the region the TVTE
has become prominent for transport and distribution activities and is the borough’s
most prestigious employment centre, attracting the highest number of inward
commuters to the borough on a daily basis.

The 1970s saw the decline of many of the region’s traditional industries. A high
proportion of those who lived in Gateshead worked in these industries, resulting in
unemployment and high levels of deprivation and financial/social exclusion, the
impact of which is still being felt today. In the 1980’s Gateshead saw the development
of the MetroCentre, now boasting over two million sq ft of retail and leisure floor
space, one of the UK’s and Europe’s largest shopping centres.

The urban core, shared with Newcastle, is the focus of regeneration, promoting
growth through the digital economy, knowledge-based businesses and cultural-led
regeneration. Major initiatives such as the Sage Gateshead, BALTIC Centre for
Contemporary Art, Gateshead College and the Gateshead Millennium Bridge have
all been developed over recent years.

Gateshead has a population of around 200,000 living in 90,600 households. The
population has reduced by around 13,000 since the 1980’s but has grown over the
last decade by around 8,000. This growth has been most significant for older age
groups with an 11% increase in 45-64 year olds and an 11% increase in those aged
65 and over. In contrast, the number of 0-24 year olds fell slightly by 0.7% over the
decade. Population projections from the Office for National Statistics predict that this

Page 119 7 January 2016 1



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

ageing population trend will continue into the future, becoming more pronounced as
life expectancy continues to increase.

Crime and anti-social behaviour in Gateshead

The number of recorded crimes across the Borough that were linked to alcohol has
increased year on year, with 1,386 alcohol-related crimes recorded in 2014/15 which
was an 11% increase from 2013/14, compared to a 7% increase in all crime.

More than half the alcohol-related crimes in the Borough in 2014/15 were violence
against the person, with significant increases particularly in the number of assaults.
It is notable that whilst incidents of the most serious violence are still relatively
infrequent, they have more than doubled in the last year. There have also been
significant increases in the numbers of alcohol-related sexual offences and burglaries
in the Borough in that time.

Temporal profiles show that almost half of all alcohol-related crimes in the Borough
are reported on Friday late evenings / Saturday early mornings, Saturday late
evenings / Sunday early mornings and (to a lesser extent) Sunday late evenings /
Monday early mornings.

Data provided by Northumbria Police enables the Council to identify the most
vulnerable locations throughout the Borough in terms of alcohol-related crimes, and
to track trends over time. Information about these areas is contained in ‘Local
Licensing Guidance’ documents which are described in further detail below, and will
be available from the Council’'s website and upon request.

Public health in Gateshead

In 2012 the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced public health as a
responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003.

Public health is “the science and art of promoting and protecting health and well-
being, preventing ill-health and prolonging life through the organised efforts of
society.” The Public Health Outcomes Framework acknowledges that health is
influenced not only by lifestyle choices but also by a range of wider determinants,
including the physical environment, domestic abuse, violent crime and noise
nuisance.

Gateshead Council recognises the impact upon population-level health that alcohol
consumption can cause. While the protection of public health is not a discrete
licensing objective, it can where appropriate permeate each of the licensing
objectives.

Each year Gateshead’s Director of Public Health publishes an Annual Report, the
most recent at the time of writing being published in October 2014. The report
recognises that alcohol is a complex social issue which forms part of our everyday
social fabric, is a source of pleasure and enjoyment to many; but is also a potentially
addictive substance which is promoted by powerful commercial forces, especially to
young people. It highlights the growing evidence of rising alcohol harm on the health
of people in Gateshead, and focusses on approaches to tackling alcohol harm.

Page 120 7 January 2016 5



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

4,

The report identifies, for instance, that:

* Around one in 5 secondary school / higher education students in Gateshead
admit to drinking alcohol; and

e The number of alcohol specific hospital admissions for secondary school /
higher education students in Gateshead is increasing.

Public health data enables the Council to identify the most vulnerable locations in the
Borough in terms of alcohol-related harm, and to track trends over time. This data
can be particularly relevant to the protection of children from harm, and may also
assist in the prevention of crime and disorder, public nuisance and to public safety.

Local Licensing Guidance

Different localities within the Borough have different characters, and challenges, both
of which can change over time depending on a range of factors. To assist applicants
and licensees in their understanding of local issues that they should be cognisant of,
from time to time the Council publishes and updates ‘Local Licensing Guidance’
documents on its website.

The Local Licensing Guidance provides information about the causes of serious and
chronic concern in these localities. The areas covered by the guidance can vary
depending on the nature of the problems that are identified, so may relate to the
whole of a particular Ward or for instance to street level. The guidance can include
a wide range of information that is considered to be relevant to those who seek to
carry on licensable activities within the area, for instance:

e The physical environment (including transport, school walking routes, blocks
of flats, commercial / residential proximity, etc)

e Existing licensed premises

e Health data (such as hospital admissions for under-18s, ambulance calls for
alcohol related reasons)

e Crime and disorder hotspots

e Known areas of congregation

e Local initiatives (such as Pubwatch, Offwatch, Community Alcohol
Partnerships etc)

e Local concerns about the promotion of the licensing objectives (including
from Ward Members, community leaders, GPs, schools, etc)

The Local Licensing Guidance will be produced by the Council’s Public Health team
with the input of Responsible Authorities and other stakeholders as appropriate; and
presented to and approved by the Council’s full Licensing Committee.

It is recommended that applicants and licensees have regard to these documents
when considering their operating schedule. In particular, where the Local Licensing
Guidance identifies measures that it is believed will help to promote the licensing
objectives in respect of certain licensable activities due to the issues that have been
identified, if an applicant or licensee chooses not to adopt those measures this may
result in representations being made.

Legal Context

Page 121 7 January 2016 6



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section 182
of the Act.

The Licensing Authority is responsible for:

* the licensing of licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act)

e ensuring that those who are authorised under the Act comply with the
requirements; and

e ensuring that only those who are duly authorised to carry out licensable
activities do so.

This document sets out the Licensing Authority’'s policy as to how it will fulfil its
obligations and achieve its strategic aims in this respect.

This Policy should be read in conjunction with the Act itself, the Home Office
Guidance, and the other policies and guidance that are referred to in this document.

This Licensing Authority regards each of the Licensing Objective to be of equal
importance.

This document sets out the policies the Licensing Authority will generally apply to
promote the Licensing Objectives when making decisions under the Act, and when
addressing non-compliance with the Act itself or any authorisations issued under the
Act. The Licensing Authority will consider deviating from the policy on a case by case
basis, where it believes it to be appropriate and proportionate in all the relevant
circumstances.

Integration with other legislation, policies and guidance

Anyone who is or who seeks to be authorised under the Act to carry out licensable
activities in the Borough of Gateshead should be aware of the other legislation,
policies and guidance that may apply to their business. Failure to comply with other
legislation and/or regulatory regimes can indicate that a licensee is irresponsible,
which may call into question their ability to adequately promote the Licensing
Obijectives.

Although from the perspective of the business proprietor, there may be an element
of crossover between licensing and other regimes, they are separate and are treated
as such by the Council.

Applicants and licensees need to be aware of and have regard to:

Gateshead Strategic Partnership’s Community Strategy — Vision 2030

the Gateshead Local Plan

Substance Misuse Strategy

Culture Strategy

Gateshead Transport Strategy & Tyne & Wear Local Transport Plan

The Local Government Declaration on Alcohol signed by Gateshead Council
in June 2015

Page 122 7 January 2016 7



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

The Licensing Authority will seek to achieve integration with relevant strategies and
their aims in its decision making.

Human Rights

The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to the following relevant provisions
of the European Convention on Human Rights:

* Article 6 that in determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is entitled
to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and
impartial tribunal established by law

e Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect for their home and private life;
and

e Article 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to the peaceful
enjoyment of their possessions.

Equality and Diversity

Applicants and licensees should be aware of their obligations under the Equality Act
2010 and the characteristics protected by the legislation which are:

Age

Disability

Gender reassignment
Marriage and civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity
Race

Religion and belief

Sex; and

Sexual orientation

It is expected that responsible licensees will be sensitive to the needs of their varied
customer base and prepared to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate
those needs.

The Equality Act 2010 also requires the Licensing Authority to have due regard to the
need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance equality of
opportunity; and foster good relations between people with different protected
characteristics. Each application will be considered with this in mind.

Crime and disorder

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 introduced a wide range of measures
for preventing crime and disorder and imposed a duty on the Council, Northumbria
Police and others to consider crime and disorder reduction in the exercise of all their
duties. The reduction of crime and disorder is integral to this Council’s approach to
the Licensing Act.

Data protection

Page 123 7 January 2016 8



5.18

5.19

5.20

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

in tackling anti-social behaviour in many areas where the schemes are well run and
there is a significant level of participation by licence holders in the borough. The
Gateshead Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2013-2015 recognises the importance
of the Pubwatch scheme and envisages it being used to share and develop best
practice and as a forum for training.

Regional and national working

The Licensing Authority participates in regional working through the North East
Strategic Licensing Group, which is comprised of representatives of each of the
twelve North East Licensing Authorities, and forms part of the North East Public
Protection Partnership.

The Licensing Authority also works closely with Balance — the North East Alcohol
Office, to achieve an integrated approach across the region and with key partners
such as the Police.

From the national perspective, representatives of the Licensing Authority participate
in the Local Government Association’s Licensing Policy Forum, and the Licensing
Special Area of Activity for Lawyers in Local Government.

General Principles of the Policy

Each application will be determined on its merits having regard to this Policy,
Guidance under Section 182 of the Act, the Act itself and supporting Regulations.

The Licensing Authority considers:

¢ the effective and responsible management of premises
¢ instruction, training and supervision of staff; and
e the adoption of best practice

to be amongst the most important control measures for the achievement of all the
licensing objectives. For this reason, the Licensing Authority will expect these
elements to be specifically considered and addressed within an applicant’s operating
schedule.

Applicants who do not clearly demonstrate how they intend to address these issues
in their operating schedules should expect their applications to be objected to,
including by the Licensing Authority.

Also, licensees whose practice does not meet this expectation may have their licence
reviewed, and as above this may be triggered by the Licensing Authority itself.

Licensing Objectives

Applicants will need to provide evidence to the Licensing Authority that, in respect of
each of the four licensing objectives, suitable and sufficient measures, as detailed in

Page 124 7 January 2016 11



7.2

7.3

7.4

their Operating Schedule, will be implemented and maintained, and will be relevant
to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The Licensing Authority will expect to see evidence that the following specific matters
that impact on crime and disorder have been addressed in the Operating Schedule
of the premises:

¢ The capability of the person who is in charge to run the premises during
trading hours or when Regulated Entertainment is provided to effectively and
responsibly manage and supervise the premises, including associated open
areas

* The steps to be taken in the absence of the Designated Premises Supervisor
to effectively manage the business.

e The steps taken or to be taken to ensure that appropriate instruction, training
and supervision is given to those employed or engaged in the premises to
prevent incidents of crime and disorder

e The measures taken or to be taken to raise staff awareness and discourage
and prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs on the premises

e The features currently in place or planned for physical security at the
premises, such as lighting outside the premises

e The policies that have been determined in respect of adoption of appropriate
existing and future best practice guidance (eg Safer Clubbing, the National
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit, etc)

* Any arrangements which the licence holder proposes to work in partnership
with the Council, police and other traders in establishing a method of co-
ordinating closing times to prevent crowds emerging from premises at the
same time and to prevent migration between premises with different closing
times

e Any appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the prevention
of violence or public disorder

The extent to which the above matters need to be addressed will be dependent on
the individual style, characteristics and location of the premises, and proposed events
and activities. In general however, the Licensing Authority will expect more
comprehensive measures to be in place at late night entertainment venues or in
premises with a history of crime and disorder issues.

In such premises appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the
prevention of violence or public disorder may include:

¢ Provision of effective CCTV both within and around premises

Page 125 7 January 2016 12



Employment of SIA licensed door staff
Provision of toughened or plastic glasses
Procedures for risk assessing drinks promotions and events such as ‘happy

hours’ for the potential to cause crime and disorder and plans for minimising
such risks

7.5  The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to representations from the Police
in deciding whether the above issues have been adequately addressed. It will not
normally grant an application where representations indicate a potential negative
impact on crime and disorder, unless the applicant can demonstrate compelling
reasons why the application should be approved in the light of these concerns.

Public Safety

7.6 The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the impact
that the following factors may have on public safety:

The occupancy capacity of the premises

The age, design and layout of the premises, including means of escape in the
event of fire

The nature of the licensable activities to be provided, in particular the sale or
supply of alcohol, and/or the provision of music and dancing and including
whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent nature

The hours of operation (differentiating the hours of opening from the hours
when licensable activities are provided, if different)

Customer profile (eg age, disability)

The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines, etc

7.7  The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may
need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

Suitable and sufficient risk assessments
Effective and responsible management of the premises

Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the
safety of the premises and patrons

Appropriate instruction, training and supetrvision of those employed or
engaged to secure the safety of premises and patrons

Adoption of best practice guidance (eg Guide to Fire Precautions in Existing
Places of Entertainment and like premises, The Event Safety Guide, Safety in

Page 126 7 January 2016 13



Pubs published by the BBPA, and the Safety Guidance for Street Arts,
Carnival, Processions and Large Scale Performances published by
Independent Street Arts Network)

Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises

Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels

Implementation of crowd management measures

Proof of regular testing (and certification where appropriate) of procedures,
appliances, systems etc pertinent to safety)

Prevention of Public Nuisance

7.8  The Licensing Authority interprets ‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense, and takes it
to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour, where
these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity
in an area.

7.9  The Licensing Authority will normally apply stricter conditions, including controls on
licensing hours, where licensed premises are in residential areas.

7.10 The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the impact
that the following factors may have on the potential for public nuisance:

The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive
premises

The hours of opening, particularly between 23:00 and 07:00 hours
The nature of activities to be provided, including whether those activities are
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or

outside premises

The design and layout of premises and in particular the presence of noise
limiting features

The occupancy capacity of the premises

The availability of public transport

‘wind down period’ between the end of the licensable activities and closure of
the premises, i.e. allowing patrons to remain in the premises for a period after

licensable activities have ceased, so that people do not disperse en masse

last admission time

7.11 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may
need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

Page 127 7 lanuary 2016 14



e effective and responsible management of the premises

e appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged to prevent incidents of public nuisance eg to ensure customers leave
quietly

e operating hours for all or parts (eg garden areas) of premises, including such
matters as deliveries

* adoption of best practice guidance (eg Good Practice Guide on the Control of
Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by the Institute of A.coustics, Licensed
Property: Noise, published by BBPA)

e installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound
limitation devices

e management of people, including staff, and traffic (and resulting queues)
e liaison with public transport providers

* siting of external lighting including security lighting

e management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter

e effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour

Protection of Children from Harm

7.12 The protection of children is an important issue and the licensing regime has a

7.13

7.14

7.15

fundamental role in achieving this. The protection of children from harm includes
moral, psychological and physical harm and applicants are expected to demonstrate
that such factors have been considered in their operating schedules.

Applicants should expect to receive objections in respect of the protection of children
from harm, and licensees should expect their licence to be reviewed, where:

» there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or the premises
have a reputation for facilitating underage drinking

e there is a known association with drug taking or dealing

¢ there is a strong element of gambling on the premises

e entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided

Licensees will be expected to prevent children from viewing films that are unsuitable
because of the age classification of the film that has been imposed by the British
Board of Film Classification or the Licensing Authority.

Anyone intending to provide staff for the supervision of activities for under 18s will be

expected to carry out enhanced criminal record checks on all such persons, and to
keep a register which should be available to the Police or authorised Council officer

Page 128 7 January 2016 15



7.16

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

on request. Applicants who do not put these measures in place should expect
objections to be made to their application.

Where applicants intend to provide any age restricted goods or services it is expected
that they will apply the same standards of age verification in respect of all age
restricted goods or services, that staff will be regularly trained, and that appropriate
records are kept of training and refusals.

Types of activity that may heighten concern as to the promotion of the
licensing objectives

It has been the experience of this Licensing Authority over the last ten years since
the Licensing Act came into force that there are certain types of licensable activity
that tend to require a greater degree of control or a particular emphasis on certain
control measures in order that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted.

Adult entertainment

The term ‘adult entertainment’ is not defined in the Licensing Act, but it is taken in
this policy to refer to activities and form of entertainment that may be unsuitable for
children to participate in or to observe. Common examples of adult entertainment
include striptease, lap dancing and other forms of dancing /entertainment with a
sexual content. Other types of activity may also be ‘adult entertainment’ such as the
showing of films that have been certified ‘18, total fighting, mixed martial arts, and
demonstrations and participation in activities containing elements of bondage,
discipline, domination, submission, sadism and/or masochism. This list is clearly not
exhaustive, and the Licensing Authority will consider each application on its merits.

Although adult entertainment is permitted by the Licensing Act, it is necessary that
licensees set out details of the activities they intend to take place in their operating
schedule, so that the Licensing Authority, responsible bodies and others may take
appropriate steps to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are not undermined. As
such it is important that applicants complete box ‘N’ of their application form, and
provide as much detail as possible regarding the nature of the proposed activities.

If applicants do not complete box ‘N’ it is the policy of this Licensing Authority to
impose a condition on the licence / certificate (if issued), consistent with the operating
schedule, that prohibits adult entertainment at the premises. If licensees / certificate
holders are then found to have provided adult entertainment in breach of this
condition, they may be prosecuted and/or the licence / certificate may be reviewed
which could lead to the imposition of further conditions, suspension or revocation.

Applicants and licence / certificate holders are advised to consider the nature of the
activities they wish to take place at their premises in line with the guidance notes to
box ‘N’ of the application form.

Sex-related entertainment

In 2010 Gateshead Council adopted Schedule 3 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 in respect of the regulation of sex entertainment
venues and implemented a policy regarding the regulation of these venues.

Page 129 7 January 2016 16



9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.

e Whether there will be any increase in the cumulative adverse impact from
these or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area

[n the case of shops, stores and supermarkets selling alcohol, the Licensing Authority
will normally expect the hours during which alcohol is sold to match the normal trading
hours during which other sales take place, in order to reduce the potential for
disturbance or disorder.

Operating Schedules

Operating schedules should set out the licensable activities that are intended to be
carried out and how it is intended that this happens. Operating schedules should be
sufficiently detailed and clear for interested parties and responsible authorities to
understand how the applicant or licensee will promote the licensing objectives.
When considering the promotion of the licensing objectives, applicants and licensees
should have due regard to the context of the locality that they seek to operate in, and
be mindful of any particular concerns that relate to that locality.

For instance, applicants and licensees are expected to have regard to any Local
Licensing Guidance in respect of the locality they propose to serve.

Applicants are expected to ensure that their operating schedule enables the
Licensing Authority, responsible authorities and interested parties to understand:

¢ What licensable activities are intended to be carried out

e When licensable activities will be carried out — i.e. between what hours, on
what days and at what times of year

*  When the premises will be open to the public for non-licensed activities

e Whether alcohol is intended to be sold for consumption off the premises
(including where it will be delivered to customers)

¢ (Where the sale or supply of alcohol is intended at premises with a Premises
Licence) who the Designated Premises Supervisor will be and what his / her
address is

« What steps will be taken to promote the Licensing Objectives.

It is recommended that applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
operating schedules to discuss any relevant concerns.

Designated Premises Supervisor
Designated Premises Supervisors have an important role to play in ensuring that the

measures to promote the licensing objectives that are set out in an operating
schedule are put into practice on a day to day basis.

7 January 2016 21

Page 130



12.

12.1

12.2

Where there is a requirement for premises to have a Desighated Premises
Supervisor, it is expected that the person will be a key person related to the premises,
so that matters arising can be dealt with as quickly as possible.

It is expected that a Designated Premises Supervisor will have day to day
responsibility for running the premises and will be present at the premises at least
50% of the time in a seven day week that the premises are open for the carrying on
of licensable activities.

Where the Designated Premises Supervisor is not available at the premises for
whatever reason, the Licensing Authority will expect an individual to be nominated
as a point of contact who will have details of where the Designated Premises
Supervisor can be contacted.

Where there are problems associated with the running of a premises that stem from
the DPS’s performance of that role, they may be removed from the role by the
Licensing Sub-Committee.

Conditions

Whilst the Licensing Act sets out the regulatory framework that applies to all
licensees, conditions can be added to individual licences to prescribe how the
licensable activities are to be carried out having regard to all the relevant individual
circumstances.

There are three types of condition:

e mandatory conditions imposed by the Secretary of State — applicants and
licensees are expected to comply with the relevant mandatory conditions
that apply to the activities they carry out, and to be aware that these
mandatory conditions change from time to time. The Home Office issued
guidance in respect of these mandatory conditions in October 2014:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment
data/file/350507/2014-08-29 MC Guidance vi1 0.pdf.

e conditions imposed voluntarily by the applicant / licensee — these
conditions will be consistent with the applicant / licensee’s operating
schedule, although the wording may be amended to ensure clarity and
enforceability. Applicants and licensees should note that in line with this
Policy, in certain cases the Licensing Authority will assume unless
informed otherwise that applicants are volunteering conditions. For
instance, as above where an applicant does not indicate an intention to
provide adult entertainment by ticking box ‘N’ on their application form, it
will be assumed that they are volunteering a condition not to provide adult
entertainment at the premises; and

e conditions imposed at a hearing — the Licensing Sub-Committee may
impose conditions on a licence where it considers it appropriate to do so.
Any such conditions will be appropriate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and proportionate to the problems that the Sub-Committee find
in relation to the premises.

Page 131 7 lanuary 2016 22



be open to the interested party or responsible body. For instance, if a licence holder
is found to have sold age restricted products to a minor, it is not necessary for a
prosecution (or indeed a successful prosecution) to take place in respect of that sale
before a review is brought, as the review would consider the steps appropriate to
prevent future underage sales.

Summary reviews

13.16 The Police may request a summary review in serious cases of crime and disorder,

and in which case within 48 hours of the application the Licensing Authority will
consider whether any interim steps are required pending completion of the review
process. This may include immediate suspension of the relevant licence.

14. Delegation and Decision Making

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

The Council has established a Licensing Committee to administer its functions under
the Licensing Act 2003. Powers and functions have also been delegated to Licensing
Sub-Committees and officers in order to provide a speedy, efficient and cost effective
service to all parties involved in the licensing process.

Many of the decisions and functions are largely administrative in nature such as the
grant of non-contentious applications, including for example those licences and
certificates where no representations have been made. These will be delegated to
Council officers. All such matters dealt with by officers will be reported for information
to the next Licensing Committee meeting.

Applications where there are relevant representations will be dealt with by the
Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee — unless such representations are considered
irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious or unless the Licensing Authority, the applicant and
everyone who has made representations agrees that a hearing is not necessary
(usually after successful mediation).

The table given below sets out the delegation of decisions and functions of the
Licensing Committee, Sub-Committees and officers. The various delegations include
delegation to impose appropriate conditions.

This scheme of delegations is without prejudice to the right of relevant parties to refer
an application to a Licensing Sub-Committee or the full Licensing Committee if
considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case.

Unless there are compelling reasons to the contrary, the Licensing Authority will
require the Licensing Committee or any of its sub-committees to meet in public —
although Members can retire into private session to consider their decision. A public
announcement of the decision will be made at the end of the hearing together with
clear, cogent reasons for the decision having due regard to the Human Rights Act
1998, the four licensing objectives and all other legislation.

The Licensing Committee will be made up of 15 members and Sub-Committees of

three who will hear any relevant representations from authorised persons,
responsible authorities and interested parties in the form of a hearing.

Page 132 7 January 2016 25



14.8 Where a function is delegated to an officer, that officer will be responsible for liaising
between the applicant, interested parties and the responsible authorities to ensure
that any licence granted is subject to the appropriate conditions. Where objections
are made then the officer will once again liaise with the applicant, interested parties
and the responsible authorities to see if a ‘settlement’ is possible to overcome the
objections without the need for the matter to go before the Sub-Committee.

14.9

The Sub-Committee will determine each case before it on its individual merits.
However, in determining the application the Sub-Committee will consider:

14.10 Delegation of functions:

The case and evidence presented by all parties
The promotion of the four licensing objectives
Guidance issued by Central Government

The Licensing Authority’s own statement of Licensing Policy

/ updated Local

Matter to be Full Sub-Committee Officers
dealt with Committee
Consideration | Six monthly
of reports to the
commitiee
Approval of new | Six monthly

Licensing
Guidance
Application for If representation is If no representation
personal licence made made
Application for All cases
Personal
Licence with
unspent
convictions
Application for If a relevant If no relevant
Premises representation made representation is
Licence / Club made
Premises
Certificate
Application for a If a relevant If no relevant
Provisional representation made representation is
Statement made

Application to

vary Premises

Licence / Club
Premises
Certificate

If a relevant
representation made

If no relevant
representation is
made

Application to
vary Designated
Premises
Supervisor

If a Police objection

All other cases

Page 133

7 January 2016 26



Request to be
removed as
Designated

Premises
Supervisor

Application for

transfer of
premises
licence

If a Police objection

Application for
interim
authorities

If a police Objection

Application to
review
Premises
Licence / Club
Premises
Certificate

All cases

Decision on
whether a
complaint is
irrelevant
frivolous
vexatious etc

All cases

All other cases

All other cases

All cases

Decision to
make
representation
on behalf of
Licensing
Authority

of objection to a
Temporary
Event Notice

Determination

All cases

All cases

Classification of
films for
exhibition where
BBFC has not
classified

If a relevant
representation made

representation is
made

If no relevant

15. Consultation and Review

15.1  This Policy will come into effect on 7 January 2016 and will remain in force for not
more than five years. During that time it will be subject to periodic reviews and further
consultation.

7 January 2016 27

Page 134



Home Office

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2018

Page 135



Licensing qualifications

4.27

Details of licensing qualifications accredited by the Secretary of State will be notified to
licensing authorities and the details may be viewed on the GOV.UK website.

Relevant licensing authority

4.28

Personal licences remain valid unless surrendered, suspended, revoked or declared
forfeit by the courts. For applications made on or after 6 April 2017, a licence granted to
someone subject to immigration control will lapse if the individual ceases to be entitled
to work in the UK. The requirement to renew a personal licence was removed from the
Licensing Act 2003 by the Deregulation Act 2015. While personal licences issued before
the 2015 Act have expiry dates, these licences will remain valid and such dates no
longer have an effect. Once granted, the licensing authority which issued the licence
remains the “relevant licensing authority” for it and its holder, even though the individual
may move out of the area or take employment elsewhere. The personal licence itself will
give details of the issuing licensing authority.

Changes in name or address

4.29

4.30

The holder of the licence is required by the 2003 Act to notify the licensing authority of
any changes to a holder's name or address. These changes should be recorded by the
licensing authority. The holder is also under a duty to notify any convictions for relevant
offences to the licensing authority and the courts are similarly required to inform the
licensing authority of such convictions, whether or not they have ordered the suspension
or forfeiture of the licence. The holder must also notify the licensing authority of any
conviction for a foreign offence. These measures ensure that a single record will be held
of the holder’s history in terms of licensing matters.

The 2003 Act authorises the provision and receipt of such personal information to such
agencies for the purposes of that Act.

Specification of new designated premises supervisors

4.31

4.32

4.33

Every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must specify a DPS. This will
normally be the person who has been given day to day responsibility for running the
premises by the premises licence holder. The only exception is for community premises
which have successfully made an application to remove the usual mandatory conditions
set out in the 2003 Act. Guidance on such applications is set out in paragraphs 4.52 to
4.65 of this Guidance.

The Government considers it essential that police officers, fire officers or officers of the
licensing authority can identify immediately the DPS so that any problems can be dealt
with swiftly. For this reason, the name of the DPS and contact details must be specified
on the premises licence and this must be held at the premises and displayed in
summary form. The DPS’ personal address should not be included in the summary form
in order to protect their privacy.

To specify a DPS, the premises licence holder should normally submit an application to the
licensing authority (which may include an application for immediate interim effect) with:

+ aform of consent signed by the individual concerned to show that they consent to
taking on this responsible role, and

26 | Revised Guidance issued under section 1 f i ing Act 2003
| Bage 136"



4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

+ the relevant part (Part A) of the licence.

If they are applying in writing, they must also notify the police of the application. If the
application is made electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own electronic
facility, the licensing authority must notify the police no later than the first working day
after the application is given.

The premises licence holder must notify the existing DPS (if there is one) of the
application on the same day as the application is given to the licensing authority. This
requirement applies regardless of whether the application was given by means of an
electronic facility, or by some other means.

The general guidance in Chapter 8 on electronic applications applies in respect of new
applications.

Only one DPS may be specified in a single premises licence, but a DPS may supervise
two or more premises as long as the DPS is able to ensure that the licensing objectives
are properly promoted and that each premises complies with the 2003 Act and
conditions on the premises licence.

Where there are frequent changes of DPS, the premises licence holder may submit the
form in advance specifying the date when the new individual will be in post and the
change will take effect.

Police objections to hew designated premises supervisors

4.39

4.40

4.41

The police may object to the designation of a new DPS where, in exceptional
circumstances, they believe that the appointment would undermine the crime prevention
objective. The police can object where, for example, a DPS is first specified in relation to
particular premises and the specification of that DPS in relation to the particular
premises gives rise to exceptional concerns. For example, where a personal licence
holder has been allowed by the courts to retain their licence despite convictions for
selling alcohol to children (a relevant offence) and then transfers into premises known
for underage drinking.

Where the police do object, the licensing authority must arrange for a hearing at which
the issue can be considered and both parties can put forward their arguments. The
2003 Act provides that the applicant may apply for the individual to take up post as DPS
immediately and, in such cases, the issue would be whether the individual should be
removed from this post. The licensing authority considering the matter must restrict its
consideration to the issue of crime and disorder and give comprehensive reasons for its
decision. Either party would be entitled to appeal if their argument is rejected.

The portability of personal licences between premises is an important concept under the
2003 Act. It is expected that police objections would arise in only genuinely exceptional
circumstances. If a licensing authority believes that the police are routinely objecting to
the designation of new premises supervisors on grounds which are not exceptional, they
should raise the matter with the chief officer of police as a matter of urgency.

Revised Guidance is under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 27
Bage 157



Police objections to existing designated premises supervisors

4.42 The 2003 Act also provides for the suspension and forfeiture of personal licences by the
courts and licensing authorities following convictions for relevant offences, including
breaches of licensing law. The police can at any stage after the appointment of a DPS
seek a review of a premises licence on any grounds relating to the licensing objectives if
problems arise relating to the performance of a DPS. The portability of personal licences
is also important to industry because of the frequency with which some businesses
move managers from premises to premises. It is not expected that licensing authorities
or the police should seek to use the power of intervention as a routine mechanism for
hindering the portability of a licence or use hearings of this kind as a fishing expedition
to test out the individual's background and character. It is expected that such hearings
should be rare and genuinely exceptional.

Convictions and liaison with the courts

4.43 Where a personal licence holder is convicted by a court for a relevant offence, the court
is under a duty to notify the relevant licensing authority of the conviction and of any
decision to order that the personal licence is suspended or declared forfeit. The
sentence of the court has immediate effect despite the fact that an appeal may be
lodged against conviction or sentence (although the court may suspend the forfeiture or
suspension of the licence pending the outcome of any appeal).

4.44  When the licensing authority receives such a notification, it should contact the holder
and request the licence so that the necessary action can be taken. The holder must
then produce the relevant licence to the authority within 14 days. It is expected that the
chief officer of police for the area in which the holder resides would be advised if they do
not respond promptly. The licensing authority should record the details of the conviction,
endorse them on the licence, together with any period of suspension and then return the
licence to the holder. If the licence is declared forfeit, it should be retained by the
licensing authority.

Licensing authority powers to revoke or suspend personal
licences

445 The Policing and Crime Act 2017 gives licensing authorities the power to revoke or
suspend personal licences, with effect from 6 April 2017. This is a discretionary power;
licensing authorities are not obliged to give consideration to all personal licence holders
subject to convictions for relevant offences, foreign offences or civil penalties for
immigration matters. When a licensing authority has granted a personal licence and
becomes aware that the licence holder has been convicted of a relevant offence or
foreign offence or been required to pay an immigration penalty, a licensing authority
may revoke the licence or suspend it for a period of up to six months. This applies to
convictions received and civil immigration penalties which a person has been required
to pay at any time before or after the licence was granted, as long as the conviction was
received after 6 April 2017, or the requirement to pay the civil penalty arose after 6 April
2017. Only magistrates’ courts can order the forfeiture or suspension of a personal
licence for convictions received prior to 6 April 2017. The process which must be
undertaken by the licensing authority to suspend or revoke a personal licence is set out
at section 132A of the 2003 Act. The decision to revoke or suspend a personal licence

28 | Revised Guidance issued under section 1B of the Lj ing Act 2003
898198



	Agenda
	1 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence
	TITLE OF REPORT:	Application for a Review of a Premises Licence:
	1.	PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2.	BACKGROUND
	5. 	PARTIES
	APPENDICES
	Appendix  	1	Review Application


	Appendix 1 Review application
	Appendix 1 Review application update
	Appendix 1.1 Premises Licence
	Appendix 1.1 Premises Licence Plan
	Appendix 2 Police Representation
	Appendix 2.1 Licensing Authority Representation
	Appendix 2.2 Public Health representation additional info
	Appendix 2.2 Public Health representation
	Appendix 2.3 GSCP representation
	Appendix 2.4 Cllr Dawn Welsh representation
	Appendix 2.5 Emma Eltringham representation
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5 Area Plan

	2 Application to vary a premises licence to nominate an individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor
	TITLE OF REPORT:	Application to vary a premises licence to nominate an individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor:
	1.	PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2.	BACKGROUND
	Parties
	3.	FOR CONSIDERATION
	APPENDICES
	Appendix       1	Application to vary the Premises Licence to nominate an individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor



	Appendix 1 Application
	Appendix 2 Police objection
	Appendix 3 Extracts from Licensing Policy
	Appendix 4 Extracts from s.182 guidance


